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ABOUT AGTHIA

MILESTONES

MILESTONES
1978

ABOUT AGTHIA

Flour Mills and Animal Feed Company established by the
late HH Sheikh Zayed bin Sultan Al Nahyan

Agthia Group PJSC (‘the Group’) is a leading UAE food and
beverage company based in Abu Dhabi. Established in 2004
and listed on the Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange since 2005,
the Group is composed of a diverse portfolio of world-class
integrated businesses and brands.

1981

Animal Feed production started

1990

Al Ain Mineral Water Company established

The Group provides high-quality, trusted, and essential food and
beverage products for its continuously growing consumer base
across the UAE, GCC, Turkey, and the wider Middle East region.

2004-05

Formation of Emirates Foodstuff and Mineral Water
Company (Agthia) as part of Abu Dhabi Government’s
privatization initiative

2006

Appointment of new management

IPO - Listed on ADX with 49 percent of the company
offered to public

2007

Acquisition of Ice Crystal in the UAE

2008

Acquisition of Al Ain Vegetable
Production and distribution agreement with Capri-Sun

PHILOSOPHY

Egypt greenfield operation starts

Everything we do at Agthia is wholehearted.
We produce the essential and trusted food and drinks that feed
and nourish full and active lives, every day.

2010

Production and distribution agreement with Yoplait

2012

We do this here at home, across the region, and beyond, for
people from all walks of life and all nationalities.
This wholehearted commitment drives what we do at every
stage of the food chain – from field to fork.
We’re determined to meet the highest food and drink quality
standards, in a sustainable way.

Turkey water company acquisition

2015

Acquisition of Al Bayan Water Company in the UAE and Oman
Distribution agreement with Al Foah

2016

We value everyone we serve, and everyone who works with us.

JV in Kuwait to produce Al Ain Water

We do this wholeheartedly.
Because when everyone lives life to the full, then we all live a
life worth living.

2
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2017

Acquisition of Delta Water Factory Company in the KSA
Launch of Al Ain ZERO

JV with Anderson Hay & Grain Co., Inc.
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

Our strength and resilience will drive us to more success

In line with this, we also developed the world’s only Vitamin D

We have strong human resource development and Emiratization

in the coming years.

bottled water, a product of our research and development teams’

programs in place to support national talent and ensure that we

three years of hard work. This product is in the UAE market

extensively prepare our employees for leadership positions in the

since January of 2018, and we already have demand from other

future. Our in-house academy, which has trained over 2,000 of

countries both in our region and beyond.

our employees, offers more than 60 training programs covering

The success that we enjoyed in 2017 lies in the company’s
strength to address all of the challenges that it faced and the
ability to adapt to changes in both the UAE’s and the Middle

I am very proud that our expansion initiatives have picked up

sustainability amid these changes has not only allowed us to

their pace and have since then registered significant contribution

prove our resilience but to also continue our commitment to our

to our water business. The successful acquisition of Delta Water

As 2017 was the Year of Giving, I am pleased to say that we have

stakeholders.

in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, the commissioning of our factory

strengthened our efforts to support different communities in our

in Kuwait, and the launch of Al Ain Zero in Oman have truly

country through different CSR programs. We have worked hand-in-

supported our vision of becoming a true regional water leader.

hand with the government to provide UAE nationals with affordable

I am very pleased to share with you that Agthia managed to grow
revenues and to navigate through the challenges that exerted
tremendous pressures over our profitability – from the continuous

We have also managed to capture market share in the other

impact of rationalized subsidies, geopolitical issues affecting

segments of our consumer business, from fresh juices to dairy

export opportunities, to an increasingly competitive market.

to tomato paste and frozen vegetables, against a backdrop of

Despite these, we never lost sight of our plan to become a

HE Eng. Dhafer Ayed Al Ahbabi
Chairman

USD 1 billion company by 2020. This motivation enabled

business hurdles throughout the year.

regime. Our flour division faced pressure in increasing revenue

brand, Al Ain Water. 2017 also witnessed the growing patronage

emphasizing our responsibility to

of consumers towards the groundbreaking Al Ain ZERO, which

acknowledge our consumers’ health and

introduced the first and the only no-sodium water option in the

wellbeing consciousness. We likewise do
this to set the bar in the food and beverage
industry and become an example in our

for their dedication and hard work. I would also like to express my

programs. In animal feed, we have invested in expanding our

sincere appreciation to His Highness Sheikh Khalifa Bin Zayed Al

product portfolio, improving our feed formula, venturing into

Nahyan, President of the UAE and Supreme Commander of the UAE

strategic partnerships to offset losses, and continue providing

Armed Forces; and His Highness Sheikh Mohammed Bin Zayed Al

the nation’s livestock farmers with quality products.

Nahyan, Crown Prince of Abu Dhabi, Deputy Supreme Commander

people who worked tirelessly to make them possible. To date,

consumers’ health and wellbeing consciousness. We likewise do

health and wellness issues.

this to set the bar in the food and beverage industry and become

in this historic commemoration.

pursuing new product initiatives and strict cost optimization

top five water brands in the UAE.

collective obligation to address our nation’s

continue to live his values. Agthia joins and supports the community

On behalf of the board, I thank our management and employees

All our achievements mean nothing without recognizing our

further emphasizing our responsibility to acknowledge our

the late His Highness Sheikh Zayed bin Sultan Al Nahyan, and

and profit. However, we were able to manage the setback by

market. In just over a year, Al Ain ZERO emerged as one of the

We continue to remain steadfast in our commitment to innovation,

value for all stakeholders through our activities.

Zayed, a year where we celebrate the legacy of our founding father,

Business, which broadly bore the effects of the new subsidy

our commitment to innovation, further

put strong emphasis on supporting local causes and creating shared

and a fierce market competition.

our growth, stabilize our businesses, and properly respond to

our market leadership in this category through our flagship

goods and items through our community support channels. We have

2018 presents an important phase in our nation’s history, the Year of

The year 2017 proved to be the most challenging for our Agri

them with quality water products, making us further reinforce

functionality and further drive efficiency in our internal processes.

downsized consumer spending, new sugar content regulations,

us to design and implement different strategies to continue

We have continuously gained our consumers’ trust in providing

We continue to remain steadfast in

many fields including safety, health, and finance to promote cross

East region’s economic landscape. Being able to achieve

we now have about 4,200 talented and committed employees,

of the UAE Armed Forces, and Chairman of the Abu Dhabi Executive
Council. They have given Agthia every support in its journey to serve
all citizens and residents.

all of whom are at the center of our operations, ensuring that we

I trust that you will continue this journey with us, as we embark on

not only deliver on our promise to the customers, but also excel

an exciting new phase of growth in 2018.

in doing so.

an example in our collective obligation to address our nation’s
health and wellness issues.
HE Eng. Dhafer Ayed Al Ahbabi
Chairman
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

2

3

4

5

6

7

HE ENG. DHAFER AYED
AL AHBABI
CHAIRMAN

HE RASHED HAMAD
AL DHAHERI
VICE CHAIRMAN

HE SALEM SULTAN
AL DHAHERI
MEMBER

HE KHAMIS MOHAMED
BUHAROON AL SHAMSI
MEMBER

HE MOHAMED SAIF
AL SUWAIDI
MEMBER

HE ALI MURSHED
AL MARAR
MEMBER

HE MUSALLAM OBAID
AL AMERI
MEMBER

Advisor, Senaat General Holding
Corporation

Deputy Director, Indexed Funds
Department, Abu Dhabi Investment
Authority

Deputy Director - Internal Audit,
Abu Dhabi Investment Authority

Vice Chairman and Acting CEO,
Abu Dhabi Islamic Bank

Director General, Abu Dhabi Fund for
Development

Senior Vice President of Administration,
ADNOC Offshore

CEO, Al Foah Company LLC

Board Member, Abu Dhabi National
Energy Company PJSC (TAQA)

Chairman, Abu Dhabi National
Takaful Co. PSC

Chairman, Al Ain Farms for Livestock
Production

Chairman, Taweelah Aluminium
Extrusion Company (TALEX)

Board Member, Al Etihad Credit Bureau

Chairman, Abu Dhabi Security LLC

Board Member, Federal Tax Authority

Board Member, Senaat General Holding
Corporation

Board Member and Managing Director,
Etihad Capital PJSC

Vice Chairman, Arab Bank for
Investment and Foreign Trade

Chairman, Al Foah
Chairman, Industrialist Union Society,
UAE
Member of the Board of Trustees,
Zayed Bin Sultan Al Nahyan Charitable
and Humanitarian Foundation

Chairman, Gulf National Forage
Company LLC

Board Member, Al Hilal Bank

Member of the Board of Trustees,
Institute of Applied Technology

Board Member, First Abu Dhabi Bank
PJSC
Board Member, Raysut Cement
Company SAOG

Board Member, Palm Tree Friends
Society

Board Member, Senaat General Holding
Corporation
Board Member, Abu Dhabi National
Exhibition Centre
Board Member, ExCeL London

Board Member, DP World
Board Member, Emirates Red Crescent
Board Member, Food Security Center,
Abu Dhabi
Board Member, Al Jazira Sports and
Cultural Club
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Agthia demonstrated a solid performance in 2017

Our food unit, consisting of Dairy, Trading Items, Tomato Paste,

environment across the region. In a year where the cumulative

despite expected hardships, recording a 2 percent

Frozen Vegetables, and Bakery, collectively performed well in

financial costs of reduced subsidies, utility tariff hikes, restricted

year-on-year Group revenue growth at AED 2.05 billion – a

2017, recording AED 174 million net revenues with a marginal

export territories and increased competition have topped up as high

strong testament to our business expertise against a backdrop

1 percent growth over last year. We are pleased to have achieved

as AED 160 million, we delivered AED 206 million net profit. Higher

of a challenging market scenario. Throughout the year,

this, despite that the overall market faced several challenges such

water revenues and profitability in addition to strict cost optimization

we have pursued meaningful collaborations, new product

as changes in consumer spending habits and aggressive price

in all business units have resulted in the recovery of more than

initiatives, and cost optimization programs, defending our

reductions in the market to defend market shares.

AED 100 million back into our bottom line and to our shareholders.

The impacts of the subsidy rationalization have put pressure on our

We are pleased that as we go along, we are joined by the government

For the first time in Agthia’s history, we have seen our Consumer

Agri Business. However, we have successfully navigated through the

in our efforts to give back to the community. Throughout the year,

Business contribute to Group revenues more than our Agri

adverse effects by means of new product initiatives, generating more

we have increased the network of our Community Support Division,

Business. This is led by our Water and Beverages category that

revenue streams, and implementing cost optimization programs as

where UAE nationals and government employees can avail of

posted a stellar 25 percent growth due to an excellent performance

necessary. We have successfully preempted the effects of the new

products at discounted prices.

in the UAE and the significant contribution of Delta Water in Saudi

subsidy regime, and we were able to minimize its financial impacts.

market position and protecting our profitability.

Arabia. We have successfully maintained our leading market

Eng. Tariq Ahmed Al Wahedi
Chief Executive Officer

position in the UAE through our flagship brand Al Ain Water, with
Al Ain ZERO rapidly joining the ranks of the top five water brands
in the country. Our expansion ambitions have come into fruition,
and we are very proud of how we were able to grow our water
business amid a challenging year.

We remain to be the number one flour miller in Abu Dhabi,

persistence, and I believe that as we move forward, we will be able to

emphasizing the unit’s resilience. In animal feed, we have collaborated

fortify our growth and significantly raise shareholder value. We are up

with Anderson Hay & Grain Co., Inc. of the USA to establish a joint

for a big task, yet we are ready to face it together, as we continue our

venture partnership that allows us to distribute forage products in

story towards delivering sustainable profitable growth in the long run.

the UAE and the GCC under the Agrivita Marabe brand. We have
also introduced a new product, Al Wasmi, a value range compound

The success extends to other GCC countries, as we reap the

feed to offer quality feed at competitive prices. We will continue

benefits of our acquisition in Saudi Arabia, and our other expansion

growing our animal feed business to stay true to our commitment of

efforts in Kuwait and Oman. These initiatives seal our position in

helping our nation’s farmers and supporting the government’s efforts

becoming a regional leader in the water industry.

in addressing food security concerns in the country.

Our beverage category faced a tough year largely due to a declining

Each year is different, and we have seen new challenges in 2017

market size in the UAE and a smaller export territory. Despite this,

that pushed us to be innovative in various aspects of our businesses.

shareholder value. We are up for a big task, yet

the category has seen notable achievements throughout the year.

As we continue to successfully implement our strategy one by one,

we are ready to face it together, as we continue

Al Ain Fresh juice continued its growth momentum at 13 percent

I am confident of our ability to adapt to any new challenges ahead

our story towards delivering sustainable

year-on-year. Capri-Sun, on the other hand, has suffered the most

backed by a strong workforce that values learning and hard work,

against the backdrop of export interruptions in the region. In the

and fueled by a commitment to accomplish.

Our achievements this year demonstrated our
determination and persistence, and I believe
that as we move forward, we will be able
to fortify our growth and significantly raise

profitable growth in the long run.

UAE, despite new school regulations and some product supply
issues at the beginning of the year, we managed to maintain our
number three position in single-serve juice drinks market.

8
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Our achievements this year demonstrated our determination and

By far our biggest challenge in 2017 has been to protect our
profits in the face of a completely different economic and business
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I extend my most heartfelt thanks and acknowledgement to
my colleagues, the members of the Board of Directors, and our
shareholders for their passion and dedication to Agthia. I would also
like to thank our consumers for staying with us along the way, as well
as the wider investment community for their relentless support.
With 2018 in our midst, we have already started to execute
our full-year plan accompanied by big news and announcements
throughout the year. I invite everyone to join us in our journey towards
greater success and growth in the coming years.

Eng. Tariq Ahmed Al Wahedi
Chief Executive Officer
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

1

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

2

ENG. TARIQ AHMED
AL WAHEDI
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

3

FATIH YELDAN
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Turkish
Joined Agthia Group in November 2008

Emirati
Joined Agthia Group in September 2015

PREVIOUS POSTS INCLUDE:
Financial Director - P&G, Blades and
Razors Manufacturing & Packaging
Operations, Poland

PREVIOUS POSTS INCLUDE:
Senior Vice President for Business
Development and Projects
Senaat, UAE

Regional Financial Director - The Gillette
Company, Turkey & Mediterranean
Markets

Senior Vice President for
Petrochemicals - Abu Dhabi Basic
Industries Corporation, UAE

4

FASAHAT BEG
EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT
WATER, BEVERAGES, DAIRY
Canadian
Joined Agthia Group in July 2006

PREVIOUS POSTS INCLUDE:
Commercial Director - SE Asia
Food & Snacks, Pepsico International
Marketing & Sales Director - JT
International S.A., Czech & Slovak
Republics

5

6

7

MUBARAK HETHAILI
AL MANSOORI
SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT
HUMAN CAPITAL AND
ORGANIZATION DEVELOPMENT

TARIQ AZIZ
SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT
HOD BUSINESS & KSA

TED THORBJORNSEN
SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT
STRATEGY

ADEL ALI AL FAHIM
SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT
CORPORATE AFFAIRS

British

Norwegian

Emirati

Joined Agthia Group in

Joined Agthia Group in

Emirati
Joined Agthia Group in December 2016

February 2007

January 2016

PREVIOUS POSTS INCLUDE:
Vice President Human Capital and
Services - Emirates Steel UAE
Chief Human Resources and Admin
Officer - Emirates Advanced Investment
Group UAE

1

10

2

4

5

6

7

9

GABRIEL
ASSIMACOPOULOS
SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT
SALES

Joined Agthia Group in

RABIH KAMLEH (PhD)
SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT
RESEARCH &
DEVELOPMENT, QUALITY
ASSURANCE & HSE

June 2016

Canadian

Joined Agthia Group in

Joined Agthia Group in 2013

February 2007

Greek

PREVIOUS POSTS INCLUDE:

PREVIOUS POSTS INCLUDE:

PREVIOUS POSTS INCLUDE:

Associate Finance Director - P&G,

Co-Founder & Managing

Regional Communications

PREVIOUS POSTS INCLUDE:

PREVIOUS POSTS INCLUDE:

UK

Director - Boston Analytics, US.

Manager MEAE - Abu Dhabi

Group Director for Food

Sales Director for Consumer

Group Finance Manager - The

Business Unit Head - Keithley

Polymers Company Ltd.

Technology Safety & Quality

Business Division - Agthia

Gillette Company, UK, Africa,

Instruments, US

(Borouge)

Assurance - Agthia Group PJSC

Group PJSC

Middle East & Eastern Regions

Head of Media &
Communications - ADNOC

3

8

Assistant Professor Food
Sciences - American University
of Beirut (AUB)

9

Various Sales & Trade
Marketing Positions in Reckitt
Benckiser South Africa & UAE

8
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AGTHIA BUSINESSES

AGRI BUSINESS

CONSUMER BUSINESS

Agthia consists of a world-class portfolio of integrated
businesses and brands, which fall under two major
divisions – Agri Business and Consumer Business.

WATER AND BEVERAGES
AL AIN WATER
AL BAYAN WATER
ALPIN NATURAL MINERAL WATER
AL AIN FRESH JUICE
CAPRI-SUN JUICE DRINKS

ICE CRYSTAL WATER
DELTA WATER
BAMBINI BABY WATER

The Agri Business dates back to 1978 when Agthia was
established as Flour Mills and Animal Feed Company by the
late HH Sheikh Zayed bin Sultan Al Nahyan, the founding
father of the United Arab Emirates.
In 1990, Agthia stepped into the consumer products category
with the establishment of Al Ain Mineral Water Company.
Throughout the years, the company expanded its Consumer
Business through numerous acquisitions and partnership
agreements, offering consumers an array of products such as
Beverages, Dairy, and Food across the UAE, GCC, Turkey, and
the wider Middle East region.
Ten years ago, Agthia’s Agri Business dominated the Group’s
revenues with an 83 percent share. In 2017, for the first
time in the history of the Company, the Consumer Business
constituted more than half of the Group’s net revenues. This
is a result of the Company’s purposeful efforts over the course
of the last decade to transform Agthia into a consumer goods
company in order to ensure accelerated sustainable profitable
growth for all stakeholders.

DAIRY
YOPLAIT PLAIN YOGURT
YOPLAIT FRUIT YOGURT
PETITS FILOUS KID’S YOGURT

47%
Agri Business

-13%

CHANGE FROM LAST YEAR

0.96
FLOUR & ANIMAL FEED

NET REVENUE
(AED Billion)

53%
Consumer Business

PROCESSED FOOD
AL AIN TOMATO PASTE
AL AIN FROZEN VEGETABLES

+20%

CHANGE FROM LAST YEAR

1.09

BAKED PRODUCTS
GRAND MILLS BAKERIES
GRAND MILLS AMBIENT BAKERY
MONTY’S BAKEHOUSE FROZEN BAKERY PRODUCTS

NET REVENUE
(AED Billion)

AGRIVITA
AGRIVITA MARABE
AL WASMI
GRAND MILLS

TRADING ITEMS
PURE NATURAL FOOD PRODUCTS
AL AIN TISSUES
AL AIN OLIVE OIL

14
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FINANCIAL & OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

FINANCIAL &
OPERATIONAL
HIGHLIGHTS

FINANCIAL & OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

In 2017, Agthia’s resilience and strength have been highlighted, as it raked in remarkable
achievements despite some substantial changes in the economic and business environment,
reaching AED 2.05 billion in revenues.

NET REVENUES
(AED MILLION)

NET PROFIT
(AED MILLION)

EARNINGS PER SHARE
(AED)

Reinforced by the acquisition of Delta Water in Saudi Arabia, net revenues recorded a 2 percent
year-on-year growth. The year also saw increased product innovation efforts, mainly in Water
and Animal Feed, and a relentless pursuit of opportunities to grow Agthia’s businesses.
Amid significantly rationalized subsidies, much higher utility costs, and a contracted export
territory, Agthia emerged with AED 206 million in net profit, successfully offsetting more than
AED 120 million of the total cumulative losses of these changes through solid Consumer Business
results, led by the water category and effective cost optimization across the organization.

LEADING MARKET POSITION in Water1, Flour2, and Animal Feed2
SUCCESSFUL REGIONAL EXPANSION IN WATER: Acquisition of Delta Water in Saudi
Arabia and Launch of Al Ain ZERO in Oman

STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIPS: Joint Venture with Anderson Hay & Grain Co., Inc. in Animal
Feed in the UAE; Completion of joint venture agreement to produce Al Ain Water in Kuwait

NET
REVENUE (AED)

+2%

CHANGE

2,048 M
1

Volume and value share, AC Nielsen |

2

NET
PROFIT (AED)

206 M

-19%
CHANGE

‘12

‘13

‘14

‘15

‘16

‘17

‘12

‘13

‘14

‘15

‘16

‘17

‘12

‘13

‘14

‘15

‘16

‘17

Internal Management Estimates

OUR FOOTPRINT
RETURN ON ASSETS

‘12
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OPERATIONAL
REVIEW

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

CONSUMER BUSINESS

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

NET REVENUE IN 2017
(AED Billion)

1.09

NET REVENUE CHANGE
FROM LAST YEAR

NET PROFIT* IN 2017

20%

171

+

(AED Million)

NET PROFIT* CHANGE
FROM LAST YEAR

39%

+

Segment profit before allocation of head office expenses.

*

HIGHLIGHTS

28%

Market share1 of Al Ain Water
Number one in the market

13%

Revenue growth of Al Ain Fresh Juice vs last year

1.6%

Market share1 of Alpin Natural Mineral Water more
than doubled

29%

Revenue growth of Trading Items vs last year

1.2%

Market share1 of Al Bayan Bottled Water almost
quadrupled

65%

Market share1 of Yoplait Petits Filous
Number one in the market
1

Volume share, AC Nielsen

PRODUCT HIGHLIGHT

Al Ain Water &
Al Ain ZERO

Al Ain Water together with
Al Ain ZERO enjoys number 1
market share in the UAE.

20
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

WATER, BEVERAGES & FOOD

NET REVENUES

NET REVENUES

NET PROFIT*

Water &
Beverages

Food

Consumer
Business

25%

1%

+

+

CHANGE
VS LAST
YEAR

The Water and Beverages segment has continued to be

CHANGE
VS LAST
YEAR

915

the engine of growth in Agthia’s revenue and profit in
2017. Revenues reached AED 915 million, a remarkable
25 percent increase from the previous year. This was

CHANGE
VS LAST
YEAR

174

AED MILLION

171

AED MILLION

AED MILLION

driven by strategic activities that included acquisitions,
effective marketing initiatives, and strong performance
of Al Ain ZERO, an innovative breakthrough no-sodium
product developed by the Company.
In the Food segment, net revenue increased to
AED 174 million. Consisting of several businesses
historically delivering double digit losses, the Company has
managed a remarkable turn-around in this segment and

Segment profit before allocation of head office expenses.

*

The water, beverages and food markets in the UAE that the company is competing in have all witnessed a consumption
slowdown in 2017, which resulted in fierce competition among market players. Capri Sun has additionally been
affected by a smaller export territory.
Despite these, Agthia’s water maintained

market, and reached 9.5 percent volume

Dairy revenues decreased by 5 percent.

its

further

share in juice drink-single serve segment,

However, it posted moderate growth in

increasing its gap versus the nearest two

leading

market

position,

maintaining its number three position.

fruit yogurt business in a market that is

competitors. In the UAE, both bottled

The 100 percent fruit juice product,

declining in volume and value. Among

water and 5-gallon segments increased

Capri-Sun Fruit Crush, sold across local

the key Fruit Yogurt brands, Yoplait

sales compared to last year by 8 percent

retail channels contributed to this growth.

surged to a 14.4 percent volume and

and 11 percent, respectively.

Overall,

the

food

category

recorded

10.3 percent value share. Yoplait’s Petits
Filous maintained its number one share

Al Ain Water, the flagship brand of the

1 percent growth in net revenues compared

reduced losses by 87 percent to AED 2 million compared

Company, continues to remain on top,

to last year. The net losses stood at

securing 28 percent by volume and

AED 2 million, which is 87 percent less

Agthia grew its bakery business, recording

to 2016. This was due to bigger scale of business on

26 percent by value shares. Al Ain ZERO

than last year.

a 6 percent increase in revenues following

account of new customer acquisitions and new distribution
channels, in addition to strict cost optimization efforts

ranked among the top five bottled water
brands in the UAE, reaching 4.8 percent
volume

share.

Alpin

Natural

Mineral

Water more than doubled its volume share
to 1.6 percent while Al Bayan Bottled

throughout the organization.

Water almost quadrupled to 1.2 percent.
In Turkey, the Company successfully
restructured its business model to focus on
profitable export markets which resulted in
a complete profit turnaround.

of

Trading

Items

posted

a

healthy

growth of 29 percent over last year.

product in the beverage category, gained
40 basis points share in the declining UAE
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acquisitions and the introduction of new
products.

coffee to tissues, poultry, olive oil and

turnaround from net losses in 2016 to

pasta – represent the majority of Agthia’s

a complete turnaround in 2017, made

product portfolio in its Community Support

possible by focusing on more profitable

Division, the backbone of the group’s

B2C channels in addition to a more

government partnership program. It allows

favorable cost base following the currency

members from a wide range of government

devaluation.

discounted prices.

SKU launches. Capri-Sun, another key

a successful year in terms of new customer

In Egypt, the company made an impressive

organizations to purchase products at

growing retail trade channel due to new

position in the market.

Trading Items– ranging from tea and

amid a declining juice market, with Al Ain
a 13 percent year-on-year increase in a
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Included in the food category, revenues

The beverages segment emerged successful
Fresh continuing growth momentum with

22

39%

+

Tomato Paste and Frozen Vegetable
segment’s
revenue
declined
by
10 percent against a backdrop of heavy
discounts and price promotions in the
market. Neverthless, Al Ain Tomate Paste
maintained its UAE market leadership.

The

impressive

performance

of

the

consumer business segment propelled
Agthia’s growth in all fronts, and the
Company is poised to keep this momentum
in the coming years.
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW

AGRI BUSINESS

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

NET REVENUE IN 2017
(AED Million)

NET REVENUE CHANGE
FROM LAST YEAR

NET PROFIT* IN 2017
(AED Million)

NET PROFIT* CHANGE
FROM LAST YEAR

959 -13% 120 -49%
Segment profit before allocation of head office expenses.

*

HIGHLIGHTS

JV with Anderson Hay and Grain Co., Inc.

New flour product initiatives

Focus on high value Animal Feed products that offer
more savings and increase in livestock productivity

Aggressive cost optimization programs and new
revenue streams to mitigate subsidy-induced losses

PRODUCT HIGHLIGHT

Agri Business

Aggressive cost optimization
programs and new revenue streams
to mitigate subsidy-induced losses
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

NET REVENUES

NET REVENUES

NET PROFIT*

Flour

Animal
Feed

Agri
Business

-12%
CHANGE
VS LAST
YEAR

FLOUR & ANIMAL FEED

386
AED MILLION

-14%
CHANGE
VS LAST
YEAR

following gradual withdrawal of subsidies that were in
place in Abu Dhabi since 2007. In an effort to capture
market share from Agthia, competitors resorted to short-term
tactical price reductions rather than longer-term strategic
market activities.

AED MILLION
Segment profit before allocation of head office expenses.

*

The new substantially unsubsidized environment led to a change in all components of the market – from the number
of suppliers to the number of farms and customers to the pricing structures and credit terms.

The net revenue of the flour segment
recorded AED 386 million, 12 percent
down compared to 2016.
Despite incremental volume losses to
low-priced

imported

flour,

Agthia

position in the UAE by maintaining its

Agthia’s response to these new market norms has varied

market leadership in the bakery channel

depending on the Company’s respective category and

Northern Emirates.

and increasing its penetration in the

sales channel strategies, ranging from defending market

This was possible due to a fast and effective

share to protecting profitability.

way of introducing new products in order

response to changing market conditions by
to address various needs of our nation’s
bakers. Agthia also added some bakery
ingredients to its product portfolio, thus
becoming a solution provider for customers.
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120

AED MILLION

successfully managed to consolidate its
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CHANGE
VS LAST
YEAR

573

Flour and Animal Feed markets in Abu Dhabi became
much more competitive after the influx of new players

-49%
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The flour business still maintains healthy
margins even after subsidy removals
compared to worldwide benchmark levels,
providing the Company a room for further
initiatives to counter the new waves of
subsidy rationalization.
The Animal Feed unit posted AED 573 million
in revenues, showing 14 percent decline
compared to 2016. In addition to the
expected impact of subsidy rationalization,
this business was negatively affected by
the cancellation of an annual government
tender. Although this loss was partially
offset by higher grain trading, it still
resulted in a profit gap versus 2016.
One of the highlights of the year was the
joint venture agreement with Anderson
Hay & Grain Co., Inc., which was aimed at

distributing forage products in the UAE and
the rest of the GCC region – under the new
Agrivita Marabe brand.
To further improve Animal Feed products, a
partnership with Nutreco, a global leader in
animal nutrition and aquafeed, was initiated
late in 2017, and an R&D agreement
was signed in early 2018. Adding to
this roadmap towards development,
Agthia’s Animal Feed business organized
special forums for local poultry farmers
wherein doctors were invited to share
the latest innovations in poultry farming
while also providing expert advice to the
local businessmen. The Company also
conducted projects with local farmers,
performing trial runs by supplying Agthia
feeds under discounted prices.
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COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
As a company that takes pride in its core values, Agthia has been committed to support national organizations and events.
Since its establishment, the Group has made it its duty to assist the development of sports in the UAE and emphasized the
importance of a healthy lifestyle. It continues to reinforce its efforts in supporting national sporting activities, competitions and
athletes as they represent the country in international events.
To further realize its goals and reinforce Abu Dhabi’s image globally, Agthia has entered into strategic and impactful programs
aligned with the Group’s corporate social responsibility and its overall business goals. These programs revolve around Agthia’s
central areas of impact - Health, Wellbeing, and Community Building.
Aside from being involved in numerous events and activities, Agthia is proud of its partnership with the country’s leading sports
organizations.

Agthia is committed to operating in accordance with best practice of business integrity
and ethics and maintaining the highest standards of Corporate Governance. Our
Corporate Governance principles are designed to support the Agthia Group in achieving
sustainable growth and protecting the interests and creating value for our shareholders
and stakeholders. Our Board of Directors (the Board) and management recognize the
importance of corporate governance practices that help ensure an environment of
effective oversight and strong accountability.

•

Trading in Group Shares Policy to ensure
that Directors and Employees do not make
improper use of price sensitive information,
gained through their positions in the Group.

•

Dividend Distribution Policy to define the
Group’s position on appropriation of profit
and declaration/distribution of dividend.

Agthia Group (the Group) complies with the
requirements of the ‘Chairman of Authority’s Board
of Directors’ Resolution No. 7 of 2016 concerning
the Standards of Institutional Discipline and
Governance of Public Shareholding Companies’
(Resolution 7). This report gives an overview
of the Group’s corporate governance systems
and procedures as of December 31, 2017 and
has been filed with Securities and Commodities
Authority (SCA), and posted on the Abu Dhabi
Exchange (ADX) website and the Group’s website.

•

Risk Management Policy to promote
adequate and consistent risk management
practices as well as a structured process
for identifying, assessing, prioritizing,
managing and reporting material risks
across the Group.

•

Business Continuity Management Policy
to implement a Business Continuity
Management System, compliant with
international and local standards, to
improve the overall business resilience of
the Group.

•

Information Security Policy to underscore
Agthia’s commitment and support towards
the management of information security at
Agthia.

•

Whistleblowing
Policy
to
provide
Employees a mechanism to confidentially
report any violations of the Code of
Business Conduct, internal policies
and procedures, or applicable laws and
regulations.

The Board is fully committed to consistently
protecting the interests of all shareholders
through the application of high standards of
corporate governance. As an acknowledgment of
our strong governance principles and structures,
Ethical Boardroom, United Kingdom, ranked
Agthia as the 2017 Corporate Governance
winner in the Middle East for Food and Beverage
category.

GROUP GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
Shareholders

The Abu Dhabi Sports Council (ADSC)
is one of Agthia’s major partners in
supporting the emirate’s vision to
develop sport and youth activities.
Recognizing the multitude of benefits
sporting events have on people, Agthia
and ADSC are working together to
encourage Abu Dhabi residents to
participate in quality sports and help
them achieve their potential in the
process. These efforts are geared
towards the improvement of health and
wellness, building of community spirit,
discovering local talent, and positioning
Abu Dhabi as a world-class sporting
events hub.

With over 220,000 visits, Yas Marina
Circuit (YMC) has established itself
as UAE’s number one platform for
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community engagement in health and
fitness. Agthia has collaborated with
the organization as it shares the same
passion and dedication in empowering
people to live active and healthy
lives. Home to StartYAS, TrainYAS,
and GoYAS, YMC envisions to be the
Meeting Place of Champions, and
Agthia is more than pleased to rally
behind this goal. Agthia firmly supports
YMC’s noble goal of bringing people
together through various activities and
creating a vibrant community.

Agthia is also a staunch supporter of
UAE’s football community. With over
a decade of partnership with the UAE
Football Association (UAEFA), Agthia
continues its support in developing the
country’s talent and potential in the
sport. The UAEFA stands by international
standards of professionalism and

organizational excellence, which Agthia
believes are important in making the
country’s football community achieve
international accolades.

Company
Secretary

Board of Directors (BoD)

Audit
Committee

Internal
Control
Department

External
Audit

Nomination &
Remuneration Committee

Conduct &
Values
Committee

DEALING IN COMPANY SECURITIES
None of the Board Members or their direct
family members have traded in the Company’s
shares during 2017.

CEO

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Committee

Risk
Management
Committee

The Al Ain Sports and Cultural
Club (AASCC) has a long history of
contributing to developing the city’s
sports infrastructure. Driven by the
same motivation, Agthia has pledged
to support Al Ain Club in its endeavors
in empowering talented athletes to
expose themselves in local, regional,
and international tournaments. Agthia
also believes in the organization’s role
of enhancing local cultural values while
also fulfilling its social responsibilities
of promoting a healthy lifestyle,
community building, and contributing
to the further development of the city
of Al Ain.
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Insider Trading
Management
Committee

Commodity Risk
Management
Committee

Business
Continuity
Management
Committee

IMPLEMENTATION OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES
Effectively
applied
corporate
governance
guidelines are the foundation of business integrity
and supports management’s commitment to
deliver value to shareholders through sustainable
business results. The Group maintains high levels
of transparency and accountability which includes
adopting and monitoring appropriate corporate
strategies, objectives, and procedures that comply
with its legal and ethical responsibilities.
The Group’s Corporate Governance Manual is
approved by the Board to reflect the requirements
of Resolution 7, determines the structures and
processes by which the Group is controlled
through its Board and the guiding governance
principles followed by the Group. The manual
clarifies the roles and responsibilities of all
stakeholders involved in governance processes
including the General Assembly of Shareholders,
the Board of Directors including the Chairman
of the Board and Board Committees, the Chief
Executive Officer, the Executive Management,
relevant Management Committees, Internal
Audit, External Audit, Company Secretary and
other stakeholders.
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The Board has established and approved several
Group policies and guidelines for achieving robust
corporate governance standards. Following are
the pertinent policies in this regard:
•

Code of Business Conduct to guide the
conduct of Directors and Employees and
prevent any influence on the employees’
independence and objectivity addressing
matters such as conflict of interest and
integrity, gifts and confidentiality.

•

An appropriate delegation of authority
to ensure efficient and effective decision
making which balances empowerment
against controls.

•

Investors Relations Policy to inform
Shareholders and Stakeholders of how
the Group intends to keep them aware
of material developments as well as to
provide a framework of processes upon
which Agthia can successfully implement
its Investors Relations Program.

The Board of Directors’ role is to represent
the shareholders and be accountable to them
for creating and delivering sustainable value
through the effective governance of the business.
It is the Board’s responsibility to ensure that
effective management is in place to implement
the Group’s strategy.
The Board is the primary decision-making body
for all matters that are considered to be material
to the Group. The Board has a rolling agenda
to ensure that the key areas remain in focus
throughout the year.

BOARD STRUCTURE AND
COMPOSITION
The present Board of Directors was elected
at the Annual General Meeting held on April
26, 2017 for a term of three years. The Board
currently has seven members, comprising an
Independent Non-Executive Chairman and six
Independent Non-Executive Directors.
The Group supports the inclusion and
participation of women in business and
believes that diversity contributes to the
quality and effectiveness of governance. For
the last election of the Board, the Group
invited nominations from both male and
female candidates; however no nominations of
female representatives were received. Hence,
we do not have any female representation in
our current Board.
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The Board ensures, on an ongoing basis, that
Directors possess the required skills, knowledge
and experience necessary to fulfil their obligations.
Composition of the current Board of Directors:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
HE ENG DHAFER AYED AL AHBABI
Chairman
Non-Executive, Independent
Director since: April 2014
Qualifications:
Bachelor of Science in Chemical and Petroleum
Engineering
Current Positions:
Advisor, Senaat General Holding Corporation
Chairman, Al Foah
Chairman, Industrialist Union Society, UAE
Member of the Board of Trustees, Zayed Bin
Sultan Al Nahyan Charitable and Humanitarian
Foundation
Member of the Board of Trustees, Institute of
Applied Technology
HE RASHED HAMAD AL DHAHERI
Vice Chairman
Non-Executive, Independent
Director since: April 2014
Qualifications:
Bachelor of Arts (Economics) (USA)
Current Positions:
Deputy Director, Indexed Funds Department,
Abu Dhabi Investment Authority
Chairman, Gulf National Forage Company LLC
HE MOHAMED SAIF AL SUWAIDI
Member
Non-Executive, Independent
Director since: April 2014
Qualifications:
Bachelor of Science in Business Administration
(USA)
Current Positions:
Director General, Abu Dhabi Fund for
Development
Chairman, Al Ain Farms for Livestock Production
Vice Chairman, Arab Bank for Investment and
Foreign Trade
Board Member, First Abu Dhabi Bank PJSC
Board Member, Raysut Cement Company SAOG
Board Member, DP World
Board Member, Emirates Red Crescent
Board Member, Food Security Center, Abu Dhabi
Board Member, Al Jazira Sports and Cultural Club

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
HE KHAMIS MOHAMED BUHAROON
AL SHAMSI
Member
Non-Executive, Independent
Director since: April 2014

HE MUSALLAM OBAID AL AMERI
Member
Non-Executive, Independent
Director since: April 2017

BOARD MEETINGS
Board Member

Qualifications:
Master of Business Administration
Bachelor of Applied Management (USA)

Qualifications:
Bachelor of Arts in Accounting and Business
Administration

HE Eng Dhafer Ayed Al Ahbabi – Chairman
HE Rashed Hamad Al Dhaheri – Vice Chairman

HE ALI MURSHED AL MARAR
Member
Non-Executive, Independent
Director since: April 2017

HE SALEM SULTAN AL DHAHERI
Member
Non-Executive, Independent
Director since: June 2015
Qualifications:
Certified Public Accountant
Current Positions:
Deputy Director - Internal Audit, Abu Dhabi
Investment Authority
Board Member, Abu Dhabi National Energy
Company PJSC (TAQA)
Board Member, Al Etihad Credit Bureau
Board Member, Senaat General Holding
Corporation
Board Member, Al Hilal Bank

HE SAIF SAEED GHOBASH
Member
Non-Executive, Independent
End of term: April 26, 2017

Board Committee Membership

Board
Director’s
fees in AED

Number
of Board
meetings
attended

Committee
Members’
fees in
AED

Number of
Committee
meetings
attended

-

150,000

7

-

-

150,000

7

50,000

5

HE Mohamed Saif Al Suwaidi

Nomination & Remuneration Committee

150,000

7

50,000

4

HE Khamis Mohamed Buharoon Al Shamsi

Nomination & Remuneration Committee

150,000

7

50,000

4

Audit Committee

150,000

7

50,000

4

HE Saif Saeed Ghobash ( 1 Jan – 26 Apr)

Nomination & Remuneration Committee

47,671

3

15,890

2

HE Amna Obaid Al Zaabi ( 1 Jan – 26 Apr)

Audit Committee

47,671

3

15,890

2

Nomination & Remuneration Committee

102,329

3

34,110

2

HE Musallam Obaid Al Ameri ( 27 Apr – 31 Dec)

Audit Committee

102,329

4

34,110

3

Mr. Osama Al Sheleh*

Audit Committee

0

-

50,000

4

* Mr. Osama Al Sheleh is a consultant on the Audit Committee with relevant financial and accounting expertise and not a Board member.
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25-Oct

17-Dec

P

P

P (By Proxy)

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P (By Proxy)

P

HE Khamis Mohamed Buharoon Al Shamsi

P

P

P

P (By Proxy)

P

P

P

HE Salem Sultan Al Dhaheri

P

P

P

P

P (By Proxy)

P (By Proxy)

P

HE Saif Saeed Ghobash

P

P (By Proxy)

P (By Proxy)

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

HE Amna Obaid Al Zaabi

P

P (By Proxy)

P

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

HE Ali Murshed Al Marar

n/a

n/a

n/a

P

P

P

A

HE Musallam Obaid Al Ameri

n/a

n/a

n/a

P (By Proxy)

P

P

P (By Proxy)

COMPANY SECRETARY
The Company Secretary is the focal point for
communication with the Board of Directors
and senior management, and plays a key role
in the administration of important corporate
governance matters. Our Company Secretary,
Mr. Namir El Aridi was appointed by the Board
and reports to the Board in relation to secretarial
responsibilities. He is also the Group’s Vice
President, Legal Affairs and has the following
qualifications:
Qualifications:
Bachelor of Laws (LLB)
Certificate in Board Secretarial Practice

Audit Committee

HE Ali Murshed Al Marar ( 27 Apr – 31 Dec)

26-Jul

P

BOARD EFFECTIVENESS EVALUATION
An evaluation to assess the performance of the
Board as a whole, its committees, and that of
the individual directors is conducted annually,
with the aim of improving the effectiveness of
the Board, its members and committees, and
the performance of the Group.

Total Director’s fees of AED 1.4 million relating to 2017, towards Board of Directors’, Audit, and
Nomination & Remuneration Committee Members’ fees, are to be paid in 2018 subject to shareholder
approval. No bonus was proposed for the Directors relating to 2017.

HE Salem Sultan Al Dhaheri

11-May

P

Current Positions:
Senior Vice President of Administration,
ADNOC Offshore
Chairman, Taweelah Aluminium Extrusion
Company (TALEX)
Board Member, Federal Tax Authority
Board Member, Senaat General Holding
Corporation
Board Member, Abu Dhabi National Exhibition
Centre
Board Member, ExCeL London

Remuneration of the Group’s Board of Directors is determined in accordance with the provisions
of the Group’s Articles of Association. The Directors’ fees is a fixed fee and is not linked to meeting
attendance. Directors’ fees of AED 1.4 million relating to 2016, was approved in the General
Assembly held in 2017, and thereafter paid in 2017.

HE Eng Dhafer Ayed Al Ahbabi – Chairman

26-Apr

P

P: Present, A: Apologies sent/leave of absence was granted to members not attending the meeting(s).

DIRECTORS’ FEES AND REMUNERATION

HE Rashed Hamad Al Dhaheri – Vice-Chairman

23-Mar

P

Qualifications:
Bachelor of Science in Accounting

HE AMNA OBAID AL ZAABI
Member
Non-Executive, Independent
End of term: April 26, 2017

Board / Board Committee Member

11-Jan

P (By Proxy)

HE Mohamed Saif Al Suwaidi

Current Positions:
CEO, Al Foah Company LLC
Board Member, Palm Tree Friends Society

Current Positions:
Vice Chairman and Acting CEO, Abu Dhabi
Islamic Bank
Chairman, Abu Dhabi National Takaful Co. PSC
Chairman, Abu Dhabi Security LLC
Board Member and Managing Director, Etihad
Capital PJSC

•

During 2017, seven Board of Directors meetings were held.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board has established two Board
Committees to assist the Board in discharging
its responsibilities. The Committees operate
in line with their respective charters approved
by the Board. The charters set out their roles,
responsibilities, scope of authority, composition,
and procedures for reporting to the Board.
AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee, appointed by the Board
of Directors, consisted of three members. Three
members were Independent Non-Executive
Directors, and the Committee has additionally
appointed a consultant included a fourth
member with relevant financial and accounting
expertise.
Roles and Responsibilities
The Audit Committee maintains free and open
communication between the external auditors,
internal auditors, and senior management. The
responsibilities of the Audit Committee include:
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•

Monitoring the integrity of the financial
statements of the Group and any formal
announcements relating to the Group’s
financial performance, as well as reviewing
significant financial reporting judgments
that they contain.

•

Reviewing the Group’s internal controls,
risk management, and compliance with the
relevant regulations.

•

Establishing, monitoring and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s Internal Control
department, systems and processes.

•

Making recommendations to the Board in
relation to the appointment, reappointment,
resignation, discharge and remuneration of
the external auditor and ensuring a timely
response by the Board on the matters
contained in the external auditor’s letter.

•

Reviewing and monitoring the external
auditor’s independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process, taking
into consideration relevant professional and
regulatory requirements.

•

Developing and implementing guidelines
on the engagement of the external auditor
to supply non-audit services, taking into
account relevant ethical guidance regarding
the provision of non-audit services by the
external audit firm.

•

Reporting to the Board on matters that
in the Committee’s opinion require
action or improvement, and providing
recommendations on the necessary steps
required to achieve such improvement.

•

Reviewing the whistle-blower system
whereby employees can anonymously notify
their doubts on potential abnormalities
in the financial report or internal controls
or any other matter, and ensuring proper
arrangements for independent and fair
investigations of such matters.

•

Reviewing any related party transactions and
reviewing compliance with such rules for the
conduct and approval of such transactions.

Determining the appointment, compensation,
benefits, performance appraisal, discipline,
replacement, reassignment, or dismissal of
the Head of Internal Control and Compliance
as well as the Internal Control Department.

During 2017, five Audit Committee meetings
were held:
Audit Committee Member

19
Mar

25
Apr

10
Jul

23
Jul

22
Oct

HE Rashed Hamad Al Dhaheri
– Chairman

P

P

P

P

P

HE Salem Sultan Obaid Al
Dhaheri

P

P

P

A

P

HE Amna Obaid Al Zaabi

P

P

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

P

P

P

P

P

A

P

P

HE Musallam Obaid Al Ameri
Mr. Osama Al Sheleh

P: Present, A: Apologies sent/leave of absence was granted to
members not attending the meeting(s).

Total fee for the year 2017 is AED 0.20 million
(2016: AED 0.20 million).

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
is responsible for the review of the Group’s HR
framework and compensation programs. The
Committee makes recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration, allowances, and
terms of service of the Group’s senior executives
to ensure they are fairly rewarded for their
individual contribution to the Group. All the
three Committee members are Independent
Non-Executive Directors of the Board.
Roles and Responsibilities
The key objective of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee is to assist the Board
in fulfilling its responsibilities regarding the
following:
•
Organizing and follow-up of the nomination
procedure related to the Board of Directors’
election and membership.
•
Ensuring that Independent Non-Executive
Directors remain independent on a
continuous basis and at all times.
•
Reviewing the potential for conflicts of
interest and judgment, and that there
are appropriate safeguards against such
conflicts.
•
Formulation and annual review of
remuneration, benefits, incentives of the
CEO and senior executives, and that the
remuneration and benefits given to senior
management are reasonable and in line
with the Group’s performance.
•
Consideration and putting forward for
Board approval proposals on remuneration
adjustments, performance bonus, longterm incentives etc.
•
Driving the performance-based remuneration
culture within the Group through annual
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•

•

•

•
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performance review of the Group’s senior
executives and succession planning.
Determination of the Group’s needs
for qualified staff at the level of senior
executives and the basis of selection.
Reviewing the remuneration policy and
training policy to encourage development
and growth of female employees in the
Group.
Reporting to the Board on matters that
in the Committee’s opinion require
action or improvement, and providing
recommendations.
While it is the Committee’s responsibility
to exercise independent judgment, it
does request advice from management
and third-party independent sources as
appropriate, to ensure that its decisions
are fully informed given the internal and
external environment.

During the year, four Nomination and
Remuneration Committee meetings were held:
Nomination and
Remuneration
Committee Member

25-Jan

20-Apr

25-Oct

17-Dec

HE Mohamed Saif Al
Suwaidi – Chairman

P

P

P

P

HE Khamis Mohamed
Buharoon Al Shamsi
HE Saif Saeed
Ghobash
HE Ali Murshed Al
Marar

exercised jointly by any two of them, which is valid
for three years until April 26, 2020.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Note 24 of Financial Statements provides
details of related party transactions.

Some of the key authorities delegated by the Board
are as follows:

General Holding Corporation

(Senaat) (holds 51% of Agthia Group PJSC Shares)
SENAAT

2017
AED’000

2016
AED’000

•

255

272

•

OTHER EXPENSES

Al Foah

(fully owned subsidiary of Senaat)
AL FOAH

2017
AED’000

2016
AED’000

LOCAL PURCHASE

13,932

15,108

OTHER EXPENSES

-

(2,097)

13,932

13,011

TOTAL

•

•
•

Emirates Iron & Steel Factory

(fully owned subsidiary of Senaat)
Emirates Iron & Steel Factory
(Emirates Steel)

2017
AED’000

2016
AED’000

593

664

LOCAL SALES

•

Dubai Cable
Manufacturing Company

In pursuance of the special powers and authorities
delegated to the Vice Chairman, CEO and CFO,
the Vice Chairman, the CEO and the CFO have
delegated some of their decision making and
approval authorities to the Management as
specified in the Authority Matrix approved by
Board. The Delegation of Authority framework and
policy is established to define the limits of authority
designated to specified positions of responsibility
within the Group. The Authority Matrix ensures
efficient and effective decision making which
balances empowerment against controls

(joint venture with Senaat owning 50%)

P
(By Teleconference)

P

P
(By Teleconference)

P
(By Teleconference)

P

P

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

P

A

P: Present, A: Apologies sent/leave of absence was granted to
members not attending the meeting(s).

Total fee for the year 2017 is AED 0.15 million
(2016: AED 0.15 million).

CONDUCT AND VALUES COMMITTEE
The Conduct and Values Committee is appointed
as a sub-committee of the Audit Committee
by the Board of Directors to assist the Audit
Committee to review arrangements by which staff
of the Group may, in confidence, raise concerns
about possible improprieties including fraud,
and to ensure that a process is in place for the
independent investigation of such matters and
for appropriate follow-up action. The Committee
is entrusted by the Audit Committee with
responsibilities for receiving, reviewing, assessing
credibility of allegations, and investigating
allegations.

Dubai Cable Manufacturing
Company (Ducab)

2017
AED’000

2016
AED’000

185

177

LOCAL SALES

To jointly manage the Company and its
subsidiaries’ operations;
To represent and jointly manage the Company
and its subsidiaries in all transactions and
documents before the Government;
To sign jointly all contracts and agreements
on behalf of the Company inside and outside
of the United Arab Emirates;
To represent the Company jointly in any
manufacturing and/or distribution deals;
To represent the Company jointly before the
banks for opening and closing accounts,
applying for loans and financial facilities,
and signing LCs, bank guarantees, and other
bank documents.
To incorporate companies and branches the
United Arab Emirates or abroad and sign
their articles of association jointly.

DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY
The Board is and shall remain responsible for the
overall governance of the Group and for those
matters that are reserved for the Board. The
Board through a resolution provided the Chairman,
powers and authorities on behalf of the Board with
the right of delegation. The Chairman under Special
Power of Attorney, delegated key authorities to
the Vice Chairman, the CEO and the CFO to be

ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE
CEO

CFO

SVP - Human
Capital
& OD

EVP - Water,
Beverage,
Dairy

Head of Internal Control and Compliance
(Chairman)

SVP - Sales

SVP - Corporate
Affairs

VP - Investor
Relations &
Corporate
Comm.

Director - Risk
&
Governance

•

Senior Vice-President – Human Capital & OD

•

Vice-President – Legal Affairs; and

•

Director, Risk and Governance

32

Company
Secretary
and VP
Legal Affairs

VP - Value Chain

SVP - QA, HSE,
R&D

Tariq Al Wahedi was appointed as CEO of
the Group on July 26, 2017. Prior to his
appointment, Tariq had been the Group’s Acting

CEO, Chief Operating Officer and leading the
feed and flour business. Prior to joining Agthia,
Tariq had previously held the positions of Senior
Vice President at Senaat and Abu Dhabi Basic
Industries Corporation.
TARIQ AHMED SAEED AL WAHEDI
Chief Executive Officer
Date of joining: September 13, 2015
Qualifications:
Bachelor of Science in Petroleum Engineering (USA)
Executive Master of Business Administration (UK)

SVP - Strategy

VP - Food

Commercial
Director - Feed

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEMBERS
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The Committee members are:
POSITION

NAME

Vice President, Corporate
Finance

Saeed Akram

Vice President, Legal Affairs

Namir El Aridi

Director Risk and Governance

Wasif Syed Muhammad

Senior HR Director Overseas,
C&B and Policy

Aby Varghese

The above activities were adequately discharged
in 2017 by the Committee members and no
exceptions were noted.
RISK MANAGEMENT

Below are the details of all the Senior Executives, illustrating their appointment dates, remuneration,
and bonus for 2017.
POSITION

Chief Executive Officer
Chief Finance Officer

APPOINTMENT DATE

Remuneration and
Allowances paid in
2017 - AED’000

Bonus for 2017
(estimate)1
AED’000

Remuneration accrued
in future (estimate)2
AED’000

July 26, 2017

2,988

1,348

To be determined

July 4, 2016

1,418

459

To be determined

Executive Vice-President – Water, Beverage, Dairy

April 15, 2014

1,538

458

To be determined

Senior Vice-President – Human Capital & OD

June 1, 2017

1,402

289

To be determined

Senior Vice-President – HOD & KSA

April 15, 2014

1,278

321

To be determined

Jan 6, 2016

1,308

222

To be determined

Senior Vice-President – Corporate Affairs

May 10, 2017

1,115

215

To be determined

Senior Vice-President – QA, FS, R&D

May 10, 2017

1,014

205

To be determined

Senior Vice-President – Sales

May 10, 2017

751

237

To be determined

Senior Vice-President – Strategy

Payment for 2017 bonus is subject to shareholders’ approval of the audited financial statements.
The total vested value of Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTI) accrued in 2017 is AED 3.014 million. The LTI benefits for the senior
executives subject to board’s approval and are linked to long term business performance.
1
2

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
The Executive Committee is composed of senior
executives of the Group responsible for the
management of the business, and meets on a
regular basis. The committee members report
to the CEO. The prime role of the Executive
Committee is to review business performance,
and organizational and operational matters; set
strategies/initiatives and monitor their successful
execution; and review key business KPIs,
progress on key projects etc.

•

•
SVP - HOD
& KSA

The Committee members are:
•

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is appointed
by the Board. The CEO is responsible to
deliver sustained growth, and must direct the
Group towards the achievement of its business
objectives, as defined by the Board. The primary
role of the CEO is to define and execute the
business vision, mission, and strategy of the
Group and to ensure that all operations are
managed efficiently in terms of allocating
resources appropriately and profitably.

INSIDER TRADING MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE
The Insider Trading Management Committee
is appointed by the Board as a Management
Committee to oversee and follow-up on insiders’
trading and their holdings. The Committee
is entrusted by the Board with the following
responsibilities:
•
Ensuring that the reputation of the Group
is not adversely impacted by perceptions
of trading in the Group’s securities at
inappropriate times or in an inappropriate
manner by employees of the company.
•
Evaluating where the employee or third
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•

•

party (such as the Group’s auditors, bankers,
lawyers or other professional advisors) may
be classified as an insider who has direct or
indirect access to “inside information” which
may affect Group’s share price and/ or trading
of Group’s shares.
Prepare and maintain a special and
comprehensive register of all insiders,
including Directors, Executive Management
and persons who could be considered as
insiders on a temporary basis.
Developing, reviewing and continuously
improving the Trading in Group Shares Policy
including guidelines and procedures, and
ensuring compliance with the policy and
assessing any indicative non-compliance to
the policy.
Annual review of movement in insider
share holdings and report to the Board on
compliance with the policy and regulatory
requirements, highlighting any exception
cases noted.
Effective communication with ADX and
SCA regarding black out days, temporary
suspension of trading and insider trading

Risk management is integral to Agthia’s strategy
and to the achievement of our long-term goals.
The Board has established a risk and control
structure designed to manage the achievement
of strategic business objectives. In doing so, we
take an embedded approach that places risk
management at the core of the leadership team
agenda, which is where we believe it should be.
The Board provides oversight of the Group’s
risk management strategy and has the overall
responsibility for setting the Group’s risk appetite.
Risk appetite guides the Group in determining
the nature and extent of risk it would ordinarily
accept, while executing the business model for
creating sustainable shareholder value.
The Group accepts and applies a moderate risk
appetite as it seeks a balanced management
of opportunities for sustained business growth
along with focused identification and exploitation
of opportunities generated through its business.
It is not the Group’s strategy to seek accelerated
growth by embracing choices with significant
uncertainties.
The Audit Committee oversees compliance with
risk management processes and the adequacy
of risk management activities related to the
Group’s operations.
In addition, the Risk Management Committee,
reviews the risk appetite and overall risk
strategy, and makes recommendations to the
Board through the Audit Committee and actions
required to ensure adequate controls/mitigating
actions are in place against key identified risks.
The Group applies a structured and robust
Enterprise Risk Management approach whereby
the risk management process is implemented
in defined steps- Identify, Assess, Prioritize,
Mitigate, Monitor and Report.
The Group has established a Risk and
Governance Function separate from line
management that enables and facilitate the
risk management process across the Group.
Wasif Syed Muhammad is the Director, Risk and
Governance for the Group and has the following
qualifications:
Qualifications:
Fellow Member, Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan
Fellow Member, Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, UK
Member, Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA), USA
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Audit and non-audit related fees and costs of the
services provided by the external auditors during
2017 were AED 992,100.

AED

Year End – Audit

Quarter Review

283,647

598,910

Review of Subsidy

45,000

Other Non-Audit services*

64,543

Total

992,100

*other non-audit services mainly includes XBRL
reporting

No other services of the external auditors were
utilized during 2017.
INTERNAL CONTROL
The Group’s system of internal control aims to
ensure that the Board and management are
able to fulfil the Group’s business objectives. An
effective internal control framework contributes
to safeguarding the shareholders’ investment
and the Group’s assets.
The objective of the Group’s internal control
framework is to ensure that internal controls are
established; that policies and procedures are
properly documented, maintained, and adhered
to, and are incorporated by the Group within its
normal management and governance processes.
The Group’s operating policies and procedures
are considered to be adequate and effective,
while recognizing that such a system is designed
to mitigate rather than eliminate the risk of
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Reports prepared by ICD are submitted to
the Audit Committee and copied to the senior
management of the Group for action. During
the year, no significant internal control failures
were identified. However, there were process
level improvements that were identified and
accepted by management for implementation
towards the continuous improvement of internal
controls of Group. On an ongoing basis, the
Audit Committee monitors the progress that
management has made with respect to remedial
actions taken on issues and findings raised by
ICD.
On 14 May 2017, Aamarjit Singh was appointed
as the Head of Internal Control and Compliance.
He is also the Compliance Officer and has the
following qualifications:
Qualifications:
Master of Business Administration, UK
Fellow Member, Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, UK
VIOLATIONS
During the year 2017, the Group was not subject
to any material fines or penalties imposed by SCA
or any statutory authority on any matter related
to capital markets. Additionally, there have been
no cases of material non-compliance with any
applicable rules and regulations. No major incidents
occurred in 2017.

The Group is also a stout believer of national
talent development. Of 50 different nationalities
in Agthia, UAE nationals constitute the third
largest and the top one in senior management.
As a testament to its attention to not only
quantity but quality too, the Group launched
an internal Career Enhancement Program that
aims to accelerate the career of high-performing
nationals to make them ready to assume bigger
responsibilities. This program has already
graduated 25 of Agthia’s best Emirati performers
in two years. Agthia Group’s Emiratization
percentage as at December 31, 2017 is 20.5%
(excluding blue collar and contracted workers) in
United Arab Emirates.
The Group is also a significant contributor in the
UAE’s efforts for economic diversification away
from the oil industry. Today, as the owner of
Grand Mills, the Group produces near 300,000
tons a year of flour, more than a quarter of
the country’s total demand. Additionally, 517
million kg of meat, dairy and eggs are produced
from the animals that directly use the Group’s
animal feed products, representing a significant
proportion of the nation’s 660 million kg meat
consumption. Under the Al Ain Water brand,
the Group provides more than a quarter of
the nation’s bottled water consumption and
maintains excess stocks of water as government
reserves for emergencies.
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The total amount spent in 2017 on CSR
initiatives was AED 0.6 million.
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Low
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250%
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227%
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184%
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72%

88%

68%
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r-1
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69%
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p-1
6

De
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- 16
Jun
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c-1

70%

95%
73%

ADCM (Sector index (Consumer sector))

SHAREHOLDER CATEGORY
(NUMBER OF SHARES IN THOUSANDS)
As of December 31, 2017
Government

Individuals

Institutional

Total

Percentage

UAE

344,252

69,966

106,965

521,183

86.9%

GCC

54

26,632

805

27,491

4.6%

Arabs

-

15

978

993

0.2%

Foreign

-

48,559

1,773

50,332

8.4%

344,307

145,172

110,521

600,000

100.0%

57.4%

24.2%

18.4%

100.0%

6.80

Feb-17

6.21

6.47

6.21

6.47

Mar-17

6.34

6.43

6.34

6.43

Apr-17

6.21

6.25

6.21

6.25

May-17

5.28

5.69

5.28

5.69

Jun-17

5.62

5.62

5.59

5.59

Jul-17

5.10

5.30

5.10

5.30

Aug-17

5.20

5.50

5.20

5.50

Sep-17

4.92

5.38

4.92

5.32

Oct-17

4.90

5.23

4.86

5.23

Nov-17

5

5.15

5

5.15

From 50,000 to less than 500,000

4.80

From 500,000 to less than 5,000,000

Total
Percentage

SHAREHOLDERS OWNING 5% OR MORE
As of December 31, 2017
Shareholders

No. of shares

Percentage

General Holding Company

306,000,000

51.0%

Abu Dhabi Retirement Pensions and Benefits Fund

30,000,000

5.0%

Emirates International Investment Company L.L.C

29,268,746

4.9%

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDERS ACCORDING TO THE SIZE OF OWNERSHIP
As of December 31, 2017
Share ownership

No. of
shareholders

No. of
shares owned

Percentage

70,560

98,010,867

16%

140

20,783,352

3%

49

72,225,240

12%

9

408,980,541

68%

70,758

600,000,000

100%

Less than 50,000

5,000,000 and more
Total

INVESTOR RELATIONS
The Board is committed to effective communication
between the Group and its shareholders. The
Group regularly announces its results to SCA, ADX
and shareholders by way of interim management
statements, quarterly results, and the annual report
and annual financial statements. Significant matters
relating to share trading or business development
are disclosed to SCA, ADX and general public by
way of market disclosures and announcements in
accordance with the related provisions of applicable
laws and regulations, in addition to press releases
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3

2

0%

35%
31%

p-1
3

45%
15% 16%
11%

Se

50%

94%
92%
72%

120%

134%

126%

Jun

67% 73%

5

86%

65%

r-1

76%

115%

c-1

86%

108%
90%

Ma

103%

De

100%

6.90

4.80

144%

140%

118%

6.77

4.65

156%

134%

De

150%

Jan-17

Dec-17

256%

252% 252%

241%

Category

SHARE PERFORMANCE 2017
MONTH END SHARE PRICE (AED)
Month

300%

r-1

The Group believes that in the heart of the shared
value concept rests the ability of a company to
create private value and to transform this into
public value for society. Among many initiatives
within this framework, the Group is particularly
proud of its government partnerships with the
Ministry of Interior (Fazaa), Dubai Economic
Department, Homat Al Watan, and the Khalifa
Bin Zayed Al Nahyan Foundation, allowing
members from a wide range of government
organisations to purchase various products at
discounted prices. A similar approach is pursued
through Abu Dhabi and Al Ain municipality
outlets as well Sheikh Khalifa Foundation
stores in the Northern Emirates, where all
UAE nationals are offered a similar portfolio of
products at discounted prices.

SHARE MOVEMENT VERSUS ADI AND ADCM INDEX 2017
Base: December 31, 2012

Jun

The objective of the function is to provide
independent assurance and consulting services
using a disciplined systematic approach to
improve the effectiveness of risk management,
internal control, compliance and governance
process, and the integrity of the Group’s
operations. The function is also responsible for
monitoring the compliance of the Group and
its employees with the law, regulations, and
resolutions, as well as internal policies and
procedures. A Charter sets out the purpose,
authority, and responsibility of the function.

The Group’s approach to Corporate Social
Responsibility centres on the idea of creating
shared value for all of its stakeholders through
economic, environmental and social actions.
Accordingly, the Group’s CSR program has four
pillars: Community, Workplace, Nutrition & Wellbeing, and Environment & Sustainability.

The Group’s flagship brand, Al Ain Water, is
the UAE’s leader in the Bottled Water category
and is also the leader in terms of bottled water
innovation. As part of the Group’s corporate
responsibility strategies in the area of ‘Nutrition
and Well-being’, strong recognition has always
been made of the relevant health and wellness
needs and trends both in the UAE and the
Region, which is then further validated by deep
consumer insights and transformed into new
products. In addition to the breakthrough nosodium Al Ain ZERO water that was provided
for the consumption of our consumers back in
2016, the Group’s R&D teams developed the
only Vitamin D water in the world without any
preservatives, colours and flavours during 2017,
and the resulting product Al Ain Vitamin D water
was subsequently launched in the UAE in early
2018. Similar efforts in the animal feed area
have resulted in poultry feed products that boost
the animals’ immune systems and reduce their
mortality rates by adding natural ingredients.

c-1

KPMG has been the only external auditor of the
Company for four years, since their appointment
at the General Assembly Meeting held on April
28, 2014.

The Board of Directors acknowledges
its responsibility for the Group’s internal
control framework. The Board has delegated
responsibility for oversight of the Internal Control
Department (ICD) to the Audit Committee. The
Head of Internal Control and Compliance is
appointed by the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee reviews the effectiveness of ICD.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
(CSR)

Ma

At the General Assembly Meeting held on
April 26, 2017, the shareholders re-appointed
KPMG, one of the leading international audit
firms, as the external auditors for the year 2017.
KPMG is a multinational professional services
firm headquartered in the Netherlands. It is one
of the Big Four audit firms.

failure to achieve business objectives, and can
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. There is
an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating,
and managing the risks faced by the Group.
The management is responsible for identifying
key risks and assessing their probable impact
through formal defined processes.

De

EXTERNAL AUDITORS
The Board nominates the Group’s external
auditors based on the recommendation of
the Audit Committee. The appointment and
remuneration of the external auditors is approved
by the General Assembly of Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

and postings on the Group’s website. The annual
investor relations program of the Group includes:
•
•

•

Quarterly conference calls on financial results
with investment community;
Responding to enquiries from shareholders
through the Group’s investor relations
function;
Meetings between investors, analysts, and
senior management;
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•
•

•

Regular investor roadshows and conferences
organized by investment community; and
A section dedicated to investors on the
Group’s website, which comprises of
annual reports, quarterly results, corporate
governance report, analyst coverage, investor
presentations, share price and dividend
information (http://www.agthia.com/en-us/
Investor-home)
We launched our new mobile application
‘Agthia IR’, available for download on Apple
Store or Google Play

Ozgur Serin is the Vice President, Investor Relations
and Corporate Communications for the Group and
has the following qualifications:
Qualifications
Certified Investor Relations Officer
Bachelor of Science in Management
Shareholders and investors can utilise the following
channels to reach Agthia’s investors relations team:
Phone: +971 2 596 0600
Email: ir@agthia.com
RESOLUTIONS PASSED IN GENERAL
ASSEMBLY
The Company’s annual General Assembly was held
on April 26, 2017. The below resolutions were
passed at the General Assembly, following which
all the resolutions were implemented.
•
Approved Board of Director’s Report on the
Company’s activities and financial position for
2016
•
Approved Auditor’s Report on the financial
position for 2016
•
Approved Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss
account for 2016
•
Approved Board of Director’s proposal for a
cash dividend of 15%
•
Discharged Directors from liability for 2016
•
Discharged Auditors from liability for 2016
•
Approved Directors’ remuneration for 2016 of
AED 1.4 million
•
Appointed Auditors for 2017 and fixed their
remuneration
•
Elected new Board of Directors for three years
•
Approved assignment of ‘rights to lease’ Land
no. 32, Mussafah, Abu Dhabi, to Al Ain
Farms for Livestock Production PJSC.
SIGNIFICANT EVENTS IN 2017
ENTERED INTO A JOINT VENTURE TO
DISTRIBUTE FORAGE PRODUCTS IN THE
UAE AND GCC
On April 10, 2017 Agthia Group entered into
a joint venture with Anderson Hay & Grain Co.
Inc., the number one hay exporter of the United
States of America. A new company, Gulf National
Forage Company LLC, was formed which primarily
imports Anderson’s premium forage products from
the USA, and distributes in the UAE and the GCC.
The first premium forage product under Agrivita
Marabe brand was launched as another step in
the direction, to complement our existing Agrivita
animal feed portfolio and provide a full-service
solution to our livestock customers in the UAE.
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NEW PROJECTS UNDERTAKEN OR
UNDER-DEVELOPMENT IN 2017
AGTHIA EXPANDS ITS GOVERNMENT
PARTNERSHIP PROGRAMME WITH NEW
STORES
Agthia Group has launched a government
partnership programme by collaborating with
UAE government institutions. Being committed to
provide local communities with convenient access
to high-quality food and beverage products closer
to their homes, Agthia opened two stores in Um
Al Ramool, Dubai and in Al Wathba, Abu Dhabi.
These stores allow members of a wide range of
government organisations to purchase various
products at discounted prices. The Ministry of
Interior (Fazaa), Dubai Economic Department,
Homat Al Watan, Sheikh Khalifa Foundation and
many others, are participating in the programme.

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am
pleased to present our annual report and
consolidated financial statements of Agthia
Group PJSC (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) for the period
ended 31st December 2017.
In addition to the expected hardships
associated with adapting to a largely

NEW PRODUCT DEVELOPMENTS
At Agthia, we understand the evolving needs of
consumers and always strive to meet these through
innovative product offerings. Al Ain Vitamin D is a
great example of realising this commitment. We
have closely studied Vitamin D deficiency, an issue
that remains a key health concern in the Middle
East, and developed Al Ain Vitamin D, a product
that not only hydrates but also supplements a
portion of the daily intake of Vitamin D. The Group
has also launched other new products in the
market in 2017, such as single serve Grand Mills
Cupcakes and Al Ain Facial Tissues. We plan to
further expand our portfolio through new product
development and follow a systematic Stage-Gate
process for implementation of innovative ideas.

unsubsidized

flour

and

animal

feed

marketplace, 2017 has also presented

AGTHIA TO MANAGE OPERATIONS OF TWO
FOODSTUFF SERVICE CENTRES AFFILIATED
TO ABU DHABI CITY MUNICIPALITY
The Department of Urban Planning and
Municipalities and Agthia Group has entered
into an agreement, under which Agthia Group
shall manage operations of two main Foodstuff
Services Centers affiliated to the Abu Dhabi City
Municipality at Murror and Mussafah, and also
to place food products in six outlets supported by
the Abu Dhabi Cooperative Society. This initiative
is in line with Agthia’s commitment to coordinate
with government organisations to provide local
communities with convenient access to high-quality
food and beverage products at discounted prices.
We will strive to improve the customer service at
the Foodstuff Services Centers.

Higher volume with better mix, profit

Water and Beverages net revenues for the

turnaround in most of our underperforming

period reached AED 915 million, growing

businesses and additional cost savings

25 percent versus last year. Organic growth-

by virtue of a strict cost optimization

excluding thirteen and a half months of

program have all helped recover more than

Saudi business consolidation in Group

140 million dirhams back from around

results – was 5 percent. Net segment profit at

AED 190 million negative impact on profit

AED 173 million recorded 28 percent growth

of lost subsidies, higher utility and other

over last year as a result of higher sales, better

operating costs in addition to lower exports

product mix and lower operational expenses.

and a cancelled animal feed tender.

In the UAE, both Bottled Water and 5-gallon

Earnings per share (EPS) has dropped to

segments

brought

in

AED 0.343 following lower net profit.

increasing

sales

versus

us with some other challenges like higher

Total group assets reached AED 2.94 billion,

utility price tariffs in Abu Dhabi, and

increasing 16 percent over last year. In

cancellation of concentrated pellet tender.

addition to higher current assets in parallel

Nonetheless, the Company managed to

with growth and expansion, new ventures in

grow revenues and restrict the adverse

Saudi Arabia and Kuwait, and other capital

impact of these challenges on the profit to

expenditures across our facilities contributed

a significant degree.

in total assets growth.

Group revenues grew by 2 percent

The strategic and financial accomplishments

year-on-year

reached

in 2017 despite strong headwinds are a

billion. The Company

testament to the capacity and capability of

recorded AED 2.05 billion revenues

our brands, leaders and people in addition

in 2017, propelled by an astonishing

to the confidence of our stakeholders. This

25 percent growth in Water & Beverages

was undoubtedly an outcome of hard,

category thanks to strong performance in

passionate and dedicated work, and I want

the UAE and contribution of Delta Water in

to assure you that we will continue to work

Saudi Arabia. On the other hand, combined

even harder to ensure uninterrupted value

revenues of Flour and Animal Feed

creation for all of our stakeholders.

AED

2.05

and

adapting to new market norms by virtue of
reduced subsidies.

ENG DHAFER AYED AL AHBABI
Chairman
February 28, 2018

segment

8 percent and 11 percent respectively. Al Ain
Water together with Al Ain ZERO reached
28 percent volume share in the UAE, highest
ever and 500 basis points higher versus
same period last year, with Al Ain ZERO
becoming one of the top five brands reaching
4.8 percent volume share. Alpin Natural

(Water

share to 1.6 percent whereas Al Bayan
Bottled

Water

almost

quadrupled

to

1.2 percent.
In order to stop ongoing losses in Turkey,
a restructuring of the business model was
executed in 2017, consequently delivering
a near break-even bottom line compared
to over AED 7 million losses last year.
Sales however fell by 61 percent as local

deployed behind manufacturing for export
&

Beverages, Food) with higher growth
potential at higher margins now constitute

AED 206 million, AED 48 million less

53 percent of Group net revenues, and

than last year. Lower profit in Flour and

contribute more than Agri segment (Flour

Animal Feed due to subsidy rationalization

and Animal Feed) for the first time in the

was considerably offset by higher profit in

history of the Company.
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by

abolished and entire operational focus was

Group net profit for the year recorded

the Water and other consumer businesses.
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Consumer

year

direct distribution go-to-market model was

CONSUMER BUSINESSES
Our

last

revenues,

Spring Water more than doubled volume

categories (aka Agri Business) declined by
13 percent as both businesses have been

strong

businesses.
In Beverages, 2017 has been a tough
year for Capri-Sun against a backdrop of a
declining market size and a smaller export
territory. Despite lower sales (by 4 percent
YoY), Capri-Sun gained 40 basis points
share in this declining UAE market, and
reached 9.5 percent volume share in juice
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•

The Company has maintained proper

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

books of accounts,

As of the date of this report, no major event

Appropriate accounting policies have

has occurred which may have significant

been consistently applied in preparation

impact on the 2017 Consolidated Financial

of consolidated financial statements,

Statements.

drink-single serve segment, maintaining its

In Egypt, revenues in dirhams declined

a new low-cost value brand range and

CODE OF CORPORATE

number three position. On the other hand,

because of currency devaluation but grew

improved formula products addressing

GOVERNANCE

Al Ain Fresh juices continued their growth

healthily in local currency. With more

full life cycles of animals. On the other

The Board of Directors and management

momentum (13 percent YoY) in a growing

profitable B2C channels slowly but surely

hand, cancellation of the concentrated

of the Company are committed to the

retail trade channel by virtue of new SKU

taking bigger share from our business, and a

pellet annual tender negatively impacted

principles of good governance. A full report

launches.

complete profit turnaround in 2017, it is well

business performance versus last year to a

of the Company’s Corporate Governance

worth mentioning that Egypt is finally moving

significant degree. Although this loss was

activities, endorsed by the Board, has been

in the right direction.

partially offset by higher grain trading, it

provided in the Corporate Governance

Standards (IFRS), as applicable, have

still resulted in a profit gap versus 2016.

section of the annual report.

been followed in the preparation of these

Food (Dairy, Bakery, Tomato Paste and
Frozen Vegetables including Egypt, Trading
Items) recorded AED 174 million net

Bakery recorded 6 percent growth in revenues

revenues in 2017 with a marginal 1 percent

following a successful year in terms of new

growth over last year. Net segment losses

customer acquisitions and introduction of new

stood at AED 2.0 million, 87 percent less

products ranging from cupcakes to lattices.

than last year, thanks to outstanding profit
turnaround in Egypt and significant loss

AGRI BUSINESSES

reduction in Dairy and Bakery businesses.

Agri segment (Flour, Animal Feed) posted

Revenues of Trading Items displayed a healthy
growth of 29 percent over last year. With a
range from tea and coffee to tissues, poultry,
olive oil and pasta, Trading Items represent

AED 959 million in net revenues, lagging
13 percent behind last year. At AED 120 million,
net segment profit was half of last year largely
due to withdrawal of subsidies.

SG&A EXPENSES
Total SG&A expenses rose 12 percent year-onyear to AED 499 million. Excluding expenses
related to our new ventures in Saudi Arabia

and accounting estimates are based on
reasonable and prudent judgment,
•

International

Financial

Reporting

consolidated financial statements,

FINANCIAL REPORTING
FRAMEWORK
The Directors of Agthia Group PJSC, to the
best of their knowledge, believe that:
•

The consolidated financial statements,

and Kuwait, the increase was a marginal

prepared by the management of the

1 percent owing to a strict cost optimization

Company, fairly present its state of

program pursued by the Group all through the

affairs, the results of its operations, cash

year.

flows, and change in equity,

•

The system of internal control is sound
in design and has been effectively
implemented and monitored,

•

There is no doubt about the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

Eng. Dhafer Ayed
Al Ahbabi
Chairman
28 February 2018

CASH FLOW

majority of our product portfolio in Community

Flour net revenues were AED 386 million,

Cash accumulated from operating activities

Support Division (CSD). Open to all local

or 12 percent less than a year ago. With the

totaled AED 430 million for the year.

people of the UAE mainly through Abu Dhabi

exception of incremental volume losses due

Cash, cash equivalents and fixed deposits

and Al Ain municipality outlets as well Sheikh

to cheap imported flour flooding the UAE

as at December 31st, 2017 amounted to

Khalifa Foundation stores in the Northern

as a side effect of an unregulated market,

AED 693 million.

Emirates, CSD is also the backbone of our

this level of pressure on revenue and profit

government partnership program that allows

was totally expected and communicated

members from a wide range of government

to the investment community as a direct

organizations to purchase various products at

consequence of subsidy withdrawal. The

discounted prices.

Company’s response to this unprecedented

Dairy and TP/FV segments’ revenues declined

challenge in the form of new product

compared to last year (5 percent and

initiatives and cost optimization efforts

10 percent respectively). In Dairy, moderate

to generate more revenue streams and

growth was recorded in fruit yogurt business

mitigate losses has successfully been

in a market which is declining in volume

implemented all through the year.

and value against a backdrop of aggressive

Animal Feed posted net revenues of

price reductions. TP/FV in the UAE has been

AED 573 million, which was 14 percent

suffering from a similar issue driven by the

behind last year. Subsidy related volume

DIVIDEND

same consumer concerns, driving discounts

losses have been materialized less than we

The Board of Directors is pleased to

and price promotions to such levels where we

initially anticipated in this category thanks

recommend 12.5 percent cash dividend

chose profitability over further volume growth.

to a portfolio of new products including

for the year 2017.
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•

To ensure uninterrupted availability of
funds, the Company maintains sufficient
bank credit lines at very competitive pricing
to cover any short-term working capital
requirements.

UNALLOCATED CORPORATE ITEMS
Under segment reporting, an unallocated
assets amount of AED 1.02 billion primarily
represents cash and bank balances and
goodwill.
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Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Agthia Group PJSC (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”), which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, the consolidated statements of profit or loss, other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2017, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in the United Arab Emirates, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. The key audit matters remain similar to the prior year except that
the acquisition accounting has been removed as the transaction has been concluded during the year.
Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

(a) Carrying value of goodwill

Refer to note 2.6 and note 16 of the consolidated financial statements on pages 51 and 63 respectively.
The Group has significant goodwill arising from the acquisition of
businesses. The Group’s annual impairment testing on goodwill is
performed by Group management using free cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by the Board and future forecasts
estimated by Group management. Due to the inherent uncertainty
involved in forecasting and discounting future cash flows, which forms
the basis of the assessment of recoverability, this is one of the key
judgmental areas that our audit concentrated on.

In respect of the assessment of Cash Generating Units (“CGUs”): We
challenged the assessment of CGUs and considered the operating
and management structure with reference to our understanding of the
business.
In respect of the cash flows, we considered the Group’s procedures used
to develop the forecasts and the principles and integrity of the Group’s
discounted cash flow model and re-performed the calculations of the
model results to test its accuracy. To challenge the reasonableness of
projected cash flows, we assessed the historical accuracy of the Group’s
forecasting and corroborated the forecasts with any other evidence that
has been made available during the course of the audit. We conducted
our own assessments to challenge other key inputs, such as the projected
growth rate and perpetuity rate.
In respect of the discount rate, we compared the Group’s assumptions to
externally-derived data (for example, bond yields and inflation statistics)
where appropriate.
In respect of the sensitivity to key assumptions: We performed sensitivity
analysis of discount rates and forecast cash flows as well as break-even
analysis to stress-test the valuations of the CGUs’ recoverable amounts.
We assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosure in these respects.
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Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’ report but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon which we obtained prior to the date of this auditors’ report, and the Chairman’s Message which
is expected to be made available to us after that date.
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

When we read the Chairman’s Message, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to
those charged with governance and take appropriate actions in accordance with ISAs.

i.

We have obtained all the information and explanations we considered necessary for the purposes of our audit;

ii.

the consolidated financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all material respects, with the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal
Law No. (2) of 2015;

iii.

the Group has maintained proper books of accounts;

iv.

the financial information included in the Directors’ Report, in so far as it relates to these consolidated financial statements, is consistent with
the books of accounts of the Group;

v.

as disclosed in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group has not purchased any shares during the year ended 31 December
2017;

vi.

note 24 to the consolidated financial statements discloses material related party transactions and the terms under which they were conducted;
and

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS and their
preparation in compliance with the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015, we report that:

vii. based on the information that has been made available to us, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Group has
contravened during the financial year ended 31 December 2017 any of the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 or its
Articles of Association, which would materially affect its activities or its consolidated financial position as at 31 December 2017.

KPMG Lower Gulf Limited

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

•

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Richard Ackland
Registration No: 1015
Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates
Date: 28 FEB 2018

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December

For the year ended 31 December

Notes

Revenue
Cost of sales

6

Gross profit

2017
AED’000

2016
AED’000

2,047,957

2,011,941

(1,369,456)

(1,317,060)

678,501

694,881

Profit for the year

2017
AED’000

2016
AED’000

204,338

254,270

Other comprehensive income

Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Selling and distribution expenses

7

(333,081)

(291,439)

Foreign currency translation difference on foreign operations

(1,733)

(18,735)

General and administrative expenses

8

(158,775)

(147,248)

Cash flow hedges – effective portion of changes in fair value (net)

18,559

(19,423)

Research and development costs

9

(6,662)

(5,472)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

10

23,392

13,504

Re-measurement of end of service benefits

(5,744)

163

203,375

264,226

Other comprehensive income for the year

11,082

(37,995)

215,420

216,275

Other income - net
Operating profit
Finance income

11

20,174

17,263

Finance expense

12

(18,869)

(26,870)

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

204,680

254,619

Owners of the Company

217,172

216,275

(342)

(349)

Non-controlling interest

(1,752)

-

204,338

254,270

215,420

216,275

1,752

-

206,090

254,270

0.343

0.424

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

13

Profit for the year including NCI
Add: loss for the year attributable to Non-controlling interests
Profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company
Basic and diluted earnings per share (AED)

14

The notes set out on pages 49 to 74 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
The independent auditors’ report is set out on pages 41 to 43.
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Total other comprehensive income for the year

The notes set out on pages 49 to 74 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
The independent auditors’ report is set out on pages 41 to 43.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

As at 31 December

For the year ended 31 December
2017
AED’000

2016
AED’000

15

1,121,578

1,016,505

3,888

9,957

Goodwill

16

275,933

188,336

Intangible assets

17

90,387

32,608

Other financial assets

27

3,887

1,587

1,495,673

1,248,993

Notes

Share
capital
AED’000

Legal
reserve
AED’000

Translation
reserve
AED’000

Other
reserve
AED’000

Retained
earnings
AED’000

Attributable
to owners
of the
company
AED’000

Non-controlling
interests
AED’000

Total
AED’000

600,000

121,423

(21,568)

-

844,556

1,544,411

-

1,544,411

-

-

-

-

254,270

254,270

-

254,270

Foreign currency translation difference on
foreign operations

-

-

(18,735)

-

-

(18,735)

-

(18,735)

Cash flow hedge – effective portion of
changes in fair value (net)

-

-

-

(19,423)

-

(19,423)

-

(19,423)

Re-measurement of end of service
benefits

-

-

-

163

-

163

-

163

Total comprehensive income

-

--

(18,735)

(19,260)

254,270

216,275

-

216,275

-

-

-

-

(75,000)

(75,000)

-

(75,000)

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Advances for property, plant and equipment

Total non-current assets
Current assets
Inventories

18

313,595

301,220

Trade and other receivables

19

404,736

346,699

Due from related parties

24

387

380

Government compensation receivable

20

35,628

95,357

Cash and bank balances

21

692,842

552,455

1,447,188

1,296,111

314,023

304,959

Total current assets
Current liabilities
Bank borrowings (current portion)

22

Balance at 1 January 2016

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Owners’ changes directly in Equity
Dividend for the year 2015
Transfer to legal reserve

-

25,427

-

-

(25,427)

-

-

-

Balance at 31 December 2016

600,000

146,850

(40,303)

(19,260)

998,399

1,685,686

-

1,685,686

Balance at 1 January 2017

600,000

146,850

(40,303)

(19,260)

998,399

1,685,686

-

1,685,686

-

-

-

-

206,090

206,090

(1,752)

204,338

Foreign currency translation difference on
foreign operations

-

-

(1,733)

-

-

(1,733)

-

(1,733)

Cash flow hedge – effective portion of
changes in fair value (net)

-

-

-

18,559

-

18,559

-

18,559

Re-measurement of end of service
benefits

-

-

-

(5,744)

-

(5,744)

-

(5,744)

Total comprehensive income

-

-

(1,733)

12,815

206,090

217,172

(1,752)

215,420

Trade and other payables

23

425,504

318,638

Due to related parties

24

2,940

1,805

Total current liabilities

742,467

625,402

Total comprehensive income for the year

Net current assets

704,721

670,709

Profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Non-current liabilities
Provision for end of service benefits

25

74,967

61,101

Bank borrowings (non-current portion)

22

278,928

165,303

Deferred tax liability

26

-

323

Other financial liabilities

27

-

7,289

353,895

234,016

1,846,499

1,685,686

Total non-current liabilities
Net assets
Equity
Share capital

28

600,000

600,000

Owners’ changes directly in Equity

Legal reserve

29

167,459

146,850

Dividend for the year 2016

-

-

-

-

(90,000)

(90,000)

-

(90,000)

(42,036)

(40,303)

Transfer to legal reserve

-

20,609

-

-

(20,609)

-

-

-

(6,445)

(19,260)

1,093,880

998,399

1,812,858

1,685,686

33,641

-

1,846,499

1,685,686

Translation reserve
Other reserve
Retained earnings
Equity attributable to owners of the Company

35

Non-controlling interests
Total equity

Acquisition of NCI
Balance at 31 December 2017

-

-

-

-

-

-

35,393

35,393

600,000

167,459

(42,036)

(6,445)

1,093,880

1,812,858

33,641

1,846,499

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28.02.2018 and were
signed on their behalf by:

HE Eng Dhafer Ayed Al Ahbabi
CHAIRMAN

Tariq Al Wahedi
CEO

Fatih Yeldan
CFO

The notes set out on pages 49 to 74 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
The independent auditors’ report is set out on pages 41 to 43.
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The notes set out on pages 49 to 74 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
The independent auditors’ report is set out on pages 41 to 43.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Notes

2017
AED’000

2016
AED’000

204,338

254,270

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year including NCI

Adjustments for:
Depreciation

15

107,361

90,751

Amortisation of intangible assets

17

2,656

1,426

Finance expense

12

18,869

26,870

Finance income

11

(20,174)

(17,263)

(Gain)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment

10

(8,745)

1,898

Movement in provision for slow moving inventory, net

18

5,872

1,192

5,297

5,215

10,567

15,016

Movement in allowance for impairment loss of receivables
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits

25

Income tax expense

342

349

326,383

379,724

4,623

(40,242)

(35,156)

(81,792)

Changes in:
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Due from related parties, net
Government compensation receivable
Trade and other payables
Due to related parties
Other financial liabilities, net

Cash generated from operating activities
Payment of employees’ end of service benefits

25

Net cash from operating activities

(7)

(140)

59,729

(15,254)

15

Acquisition of intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired
Investment in subsidiary
Funds (invested in) / divested from fixed deposits

21

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

2016

Grand Mills Company PJSC

UAE

100

100

Production and sale of flour and animal feed.

Al Ain Food and Beverages PJSC (AAFB-UAE)

UAE

100

100

Production and sale of bottled water, flavored
water, juices, yogurt, tomato paste, frozen
vegetables, frozen baked products and trading
of food products.

Agthia Group Egypt LLC (Agthia Egypt)

Egypt

100

100

Processing and sale of tomato paste, chilli
paste, fruit concentrate and frozen vegetables.

Agthia Grup Icecek ve Dagitim Sanayi ve Ticaret Limited
Sirketi (Agthia Turkey)

Turkey

100

100

Production, bottling and sale of bottled water.

Al Bayan Purification and Potable Water LLC

UAE

100

100

Production, bottling and sale of bottled water.

Shaklan Plastic Manufacturing Co. LLC

UAE

100

100

Production of plastic bottles and containers

Oman

100

100

Production, bottling and sale of bottled water.

KSA

100

-

Production, bottling and sale of bottled water.

Kuwait

50

-

Production, bottling and sale of bottled water.

UAE

51

-

Import and wholesale of fodder.

Al Manal Purification and Bottling of Mineral Water LLC

1,292

(3,304)

(4,786)

Al Rammah National For General Trading and Contracting Company WLL

441,917

243,515

(11,460)

(3,095)

430,457

240,420

(118,629)

(174,107)

-

(207)

10,766

1,182

(178,022)

-

(29,197)

-

(122,200)

3,443

16,701

13,334

(420,581)

(156,355)

113,625

-

23,356

4,185

(6,285)

(12,245)

Dividend paid

(90,000)

(75,000)

Interest paid

(17,753)

(26,408)

Net cash from / (used in) financing activities

22,943

(109,468)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

32,819

(25,403)

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

21,373

44,155

21

2017

1,135

Settlement of derivative – net

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Country of
incorporation
and operation

Name of subsidiaries

4,713

Bank borrowings - net

Effect of foreign exchange

The consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 December 2017 comprise the Company and its below
mentioned subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

88,514

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from term loan – net

Agthia Group PJSC (the “Company”) was incorporated as a Public Joint Stock Company pursuant to the Ministerial Resolution No. 324 for 2004
in the Emirate of Abu Dhabi. General Holding Corporation PJSC (SENAAT) owns 51% of the Company’s shares which is wholly owned by the
Government of Abu Dhabi. The principal activities of the Company are to establish, invest, trade and operate companies and businesses that are
involved in the food and beverage sector.

Delta Bottled Water Factory Company Limited

Cash flows from investing activities
Advances/acquisition of property, plant and equipment

1 		 Legal status and principal activities

(339)

2,621

53,853

21,373

Gulf National Forage Company LLC

2

Share of equity (%)

Principal activities

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
2.1

Basis of preparation

(a)
Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and Interpretations
issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee of the IASB (IFRIC) and applicable requirements of the UAE Federal Law No 2 of 2015 being the
Commercial Companies Law (“UAE Companies Law of 2015”).
(b)
Basis of measurement
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis except for derivative financial instruments, which are carried
at fair value.
(c)
Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). These consolidated financial statements are presented in ‘United Arab Emirates Dirham’ (AED), which is
the Group’s functional and presentation currency, rounded to the nearest thousand.
(d)
Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 4. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognised prospectively.
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
The Group has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in these consolidated financial statements except for the new
standards and interpretations that became applicable and were adopted during the year.

New standards and interpretations adopted:
During the year new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations have become effective for the period and have been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements. These amendments are listed below:

•
The notes set out on pages 49 to 74 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
The independent auditors’ report is set out on pages 41 to 43.

48

Disclosure initiative (amendments to IAS 7)

Adoption of these amendments does not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group except for some additional
disclosures (refer to note 36).
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2 		 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2 		 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2

Basis of consolidation

2.4

Foreign currency (continued)

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.

(i)

IFRS 10 governs the basis for consolidation where it establishes a single control model that applies to all entities including special purpose entities or
structured entities.

assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that statement of financial
position;

(ii)

income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss are translated at the rate prevailing on the date of the transaction; and

The definition of control under IFRS 10 is that an investor controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. To meet the definition of control in IFRS 10, all the
following three criteria must be met, including:

(iii)

all resulting exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

2.5

Property, plant and equipment

(a)

the investor has power over an investee;

(b)

the investor has exposure to, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

(c)

the investor has the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials
and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use, the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment
is capitalised as part of that equipment. When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items of property, plant and equipment.

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are investees that are controlled by the Group. The Group controls the investee if it meets the control criteria. The Group reassesses whether it
has control if, there are changes to one or more of the elements of control. This includes circumstances in which protective rights held become substantive
and lead to the Group having power over an investee. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in these consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.
Non-controlling interests
NCI are measured initially at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition. Changes in the Group’s interest
in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.
When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, and any related NCI and other components of
equity. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value when control is lost.

Business combination
The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
fair value of the assets acquired, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, together with the fair value of any
contingent consideration payable.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the financial period in which
they are incurred.
Freehold land is not depreciated though it is subject to impairment testing. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost or revalued amounts to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:
Buildings
Plant and equipment

20-40 years
4-20 years

Other equipment

2-3 years

Vehicles

4-8 years

Furniture and fixtures

4-5 years

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is
written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.7). Gains and
losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within ‘other income’ in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of control
Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions – that is, as transactions with the
owners in their capacity as owners. Gains or losses on disposals of non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Capital work in progress
The Group capitalises all costs relating to the construction of property, plant and equipment as capital work in progress, up to the date of completion and
commissioning of the assets.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised gains
arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee.
Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

These costs are then transferred from capital work in progress to the appropriate asset classification upon completion and commissioning, and are
depreciated over their useful economic lives from the date of such completion and commissioning.

2.3

2.6.1 Goodwill

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Group’s CEO.
An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including
revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed
regularly by the Group’s CEO to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which financial
information is available (see note 5).
2.4

Foreign currency

(a)
Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss within
“finance income or finance expense”.

2.6

Intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary
at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.
Calculations are performed based on the expected cash flows of the relevant cash generating units and discounting them at an appropriate discount rate,
the determination of which requires the exercise of judgement.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose, identified according to operating segments.
2.6.2 Acquired intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured initially at fair value which reflects market expectations of the probability that future economic benefits
embodied in the asset will flow to the entity.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
within “finance income or finance expense”.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised but tested for impairment annually or more frequently if the events and circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired either individually or at the cash-generating unit level.

(b)
Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from the Group’s functional and presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is reviewed annually to determine whether the useful life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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2 		 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.7

2.12 Trade receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection is expected
in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as noncurrent assets.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life – for example, goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use – are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
2.8
Financial assets
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: loans and receivables and at fair value through profit or loss. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(a)
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period. These are classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables comprise ‘trade and other receivables’, ‘due from related parties’, and ‘cash and bank balances’ in the consolidated
statement of financial position (notes 2.12 and 2.13). These assets are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cost.
Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
(b)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. Derivative financial instruments are also categorised as
held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets/liabilities in this category are classified as current assets/liabilities if expected to be settled
within 12 months, otherwise they are classified as non-current.
2.9
Impairment of financial assets
Impairment losses on financial assets carried at amortised cost are measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial assets and
the present value of estimated cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. Impairment losses are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account against such financial assets. When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to
decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
2.10 Financial instruments
Financial instruments comprise trade and other receivables, amounts due from related parties, cash and bank balances, trade and other payables,
amounts due to related parties, derivative financial instruments, and bank loans. A financial instrument is recognised if the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus, any directly attributable transaction costs.
Financial assets are derecognised if the Group’s contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire, or if the Group transfers the financial
asset to another party without retaining control or substantially all risks and rewards of the asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised if the Group’s
obligations specified in the contract expire or are discharged or cancelled.
Cash and bank balances comprise unrestricted cash balances and term deposits with original contractual maturities of three months or less.
The fair values of the financial instruments are not materially different from the carrying amount.

Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Derivative financial instruments
The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk exposures. Derivatives are initially measured at fair
value; any directly attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at
fair value, and changes therein are recognised in profit or loss.
Cash flow hedges
When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognised in OCI
and accumulated in the hedging reserve. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
The amount accumulated in equity is retained in OCI and reclassified to profit or loss in the same period or periods during which the hedged forecast cash
flows affects profit or loss or the hedged item affects profit or loss.
If the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the hedging instrument expires or
is sold, terminated or exercised, or the designation is revoked, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. If the forecast transaction is no longer
expected to occur, then the amount accumulated in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.
2.11 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Cost of inventories includes
expenditures incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion cost and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and
condition. In case of manufactured inventories cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity. It excludes
borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.
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Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision
for impairment.
2.13 Cash and bank balances
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of not more than three months and bank overdrafts. In the consolidated statement of financial position, bank
overdrafts are shown within current liabilities.
2.14 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
2.15 Trade payables
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.
Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
2.16 Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the period of loan.
2.17 Current and deferred income tax
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the statement of financial position date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.
Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
2.18 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(a)
Bonus and long-term incentive plans
The Group recognises the liability for bonuses and long-term incentives in the consolidated statement of profit and loss on an accrued basis. The benefits
for the management are subject to board’s approval and are linked to business performance.
(b)
Defined contribution plan
Monthly pension contributions are made in respect of UAE National employees, who are covered by the Law No. 2 of 2000. The pension fund is
administered by the Government of Abu Dhabi, Finance Department, represented by the Abu Dhabi Retirement Pensions and Benefits Fund.
(c)
Defined benefit plan
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Group currently operates an unfunded scheme for
defined benefits in accordance with the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Labour Law and is based on periods of cumulative service and levels
of employees’ final basic salaries. The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognised past
service costs are deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the valuation date on US AA-rated corporate bonds, which in the absence of a deep market
in corporate bonds within the UAE is the relevant proxy market as determined by the actuaries.
The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When benefits of the
plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit related to past service by employees is recognised in the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the average period until the benefits become vested. To the extent that the benefits vest immediately, the expense is recognised immediately in the profit
or loss. The Group recognises all actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans in other comprehensive income and all expenses related
to defined benefit plans within profit or loss.
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2.19

2.28

Provisions

Provisions for claims are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required and settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.
2.20

Revenue recognition

(i)

Sales of goods

New standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments sets out requirements for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some contracts to buy or sell
non-financial items. This standard replaced IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
Classification – Financial assets
IFRS 9 contains new classification and measurement approach for financial assets that reflects the business model in which assets are managed and
their cash flow characteristics.
IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at amortised cost, FVOCI and FVTPL. The standard eliminates the
existing IAS 39 categories of held to maturity, loans and receivables and available for sale.

For the sale of goods, revenue is currently recognised when the customer accepts the goods and related risks and rewards of ownership transfer. Revenue
is recognised at this point provided that the revenue and costs can be measured reliably, the recovery of the consideration is probable and there is no
continuing management involvement with the goods.
For certain contracts that permit the customer to return an item, revenue is currently recognised when a reasonable estimate of the returns can be made,
provided that all other criteria for revenue recognition are met. If a reasonable estimate cannot be made, then revenue recognition is deferred until the
return period lapses or a reasonable estimate of returns can be made.
Under IFRS 15, revenue will be recognised when a customer obtains control of the goods.
Based on its assessment, the Group does not expect the application of IFRS 15 to have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements.

(ii)
Sale of services
Revenue from services rendered is recognised upon services performed.
(iii)
Transition
The Group plans to adopt IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method, with the effect of initially applying this standard recognised at the date of initial
application (i.e. 1 January 2018). As a result, the Group will not apply the requirements of IFRS 15 to the comparative period presented.

Under IFRS 9, derivatives embedded in contracts where the host is a financial asset in the scope of the standard are never bifurcated. Instead, the hybrid
financial instrument as a whole is assessed for classification.
Impairment – Financial assets and contract assets
IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in IAS 39 with a forward-looking ‘expected credit loss’ (ECL) model. This will require considerable judgement
about how changes in economic factors affect ECLs, which will be determined on a probability-weighted basis.
The new impairment model will apply to the financial assets measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, except for investment equity instruments, and to
contract assets.
Under IFRS 9, loss allowance will be measured on either of the following bases:
12-month ECLs: these are ECLs that result from possible default events within the 12 months after the reporting date; and
Lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

2.21 Finance income and finance expenses
Finance income comprises interest income on call deposits and gains on derivative financial instruments (note 2.10). Interest income is recognised as it
accrues, using the effective interest method.

Lifetime ECL measurement applies if the credit risk of a financial asset at the reporting date has increased significantly since initial recognition and
12-month ECL measurement applies if it has not. An entity may determine that a financial asset’s credit risk has not increased significantly if the asset
has low credit risk at the reporting date. However, lifetime ECL measurement always applies for trade receivables and contract assets without a significant
financing component. The Group has chosen to apply this policy also for trade receivables and contract assets with a significant financing component.

Finance expense comprises interest expenses on borrowings and foreign exchange losses. All borrowing costs are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents
The cash and cash equivalents are held with bank and financial institution counterparties as at 31 December 2017.

2.22 Leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease. The Group leases certain properties and vehicles.

Classification – Financial liabilities
IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 for the classification of financial liabilities.

2.23 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group’s consolidated financial statements in the period in which the
dividend are approved by the Group’s shareholders.
2.24 Government compensation and grants
Funds that compensate the Group for selling flour and animal feed at subsidised prices within the Emirate of Abu Dhabi are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, as a deduction from the cost of sales, on a systematic basis in the same period in which the sales transaction is affected.
2.25 Earnings per share
The Group presents earnings per share data for its shares. Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to shareholders of the
Group by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period.

However, under IAS 39 all fair value changes of liabilities designated as at FVTPL are recognised in profit or loss, whereas under IFRS 9 these fair value
changes are generally presented as follows:
the amount of change in the fair value that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability is presented in OCI; and
the remaining amount of change in the fair value is presented in profit or loss.
Hedge accounting
The Group does not have any hedge relationships which are subject to impact assessment as at 31 December 2017.
Disclosures
IFRS 9 will require extensive new disclosures, in particular about hedge accounting, credit risk and ECLs. The Group’s assessment included an analysis
to identify data gaps against current processes and the Group is in the process of implementing the system and controls changes that it believes will be
necessary to capture the required data.

2.27 Zakat
Zakat is provided for in accordance with Saudi Arabian fiscal regulations. The provision is charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Additional amounts, if any, that may become due on finalisation of an assessment are accounted for in the year in which assessment is finalized.

Transition
Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 will generally be applied retrospectively, except as described below.
-The Group will take advantage of the exemption allowing it not to restate comparative information for prior periods with respect to classification
and measurement (including impairment) changes. Differences in the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities resulting from
the adoption of IFRS 9 will generally be recognised in retained earnings and reserves as at 1 January 2018.
-The new hedge accounting requirements should generally be applied prospectively. Since there is no hedge relationship as at 31 December 2017,
above transition will not have any effect.
-The following assessments have to be made on the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at the date of initial application.
• The determination of the business model within which a financial asset is held;
• The designation and revocation of previous designations of certain financial assets and financial liabilities as measured at FVTPL; and
• The designation of certain investments in equity instruments not held for trading as at FVOCI.

2.28 New standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective
A number of new standards are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2017 and earlier application is permitted; however, the Group has
not early applied the following new or amended standards in preparing these consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognised. It replaces existing revenue
recognition guidance, including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes.

2.26 Research and development cost
In accordance with IAS 38 ‘Intangible Assets’, expenditure incurred on research and development, excluding known recoverable amounts on contracts,
and contributions to shared engineering programmes, is distinguished as relating either to a research phase or to a development phase. All research phase
expenditure is charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss. For development expenditure, this is capitalised as an internally generated intangible
asset only if it meets criteria, relating in particular to technical feasibility and generation of future economic benefits. Expenditure that cannot be classified
into these two categories is treated as being incurred in the research phase.

Management has performed its assessment on the following standards and concluded that these standards do not have a material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the period of initial application.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3

Financial risk management (continued)

2.28

New standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

Sales of goods
For the sale of goods, revenue is currently recognised when the customer accepts the goods and related risks and rewards of ownership transfer. Revenue
is recognised at this point provided that the revenue and costs can be measured reliably, the recovery of the consideration is probable and there is no
continuing management involvement with the goods.
For certain contracts that permit the customer to return an item, revenue is currently recognised when a reasonable estimate of the returns can be made,
provided that all other criteria for revenue recognition are met. If a reasonable estimate cannot be made, then revenue recognition is deferred until the
return period lapses or a reasonable estimate of returns can be made.
Under IFRS 15, revenue will be recognised when a customer obtains control of the goods.
Based on its assessment, the Group does not expect the application of IFRS 15 to have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements.
Sale of services
Revenue from services rendered is recognised upon services performed.
Transition
The Group plans to adopt IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method, with the effect of initially applying this standard recognised at the date of initial
application (i.e. 1 January 2018). As a result, the Group will not apply the requirements of IFRS 15 to the comparative period presented.
IFRS 16 Leases
IFRS 16 replaces existing leases guidance, including IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating
Leases – incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.
The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early adoption is permitted for entities that apply IFRS 15 at or before
the date of initial application of IFRS 16.
IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises a right-of-use asset representing its right to use
the underlying asset and lease liability representing its obligations to make lease payments. There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and
leases of low-value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard – i.e. lessors continue to classify leases as finance or operating leases.
The Group has completed an initial assessment of the potential impact on its consolidated financial statements but has not yet completed its detailed
assessment. The actual impact of applying IFRS 16 on the consolidated financial statements in the period of initial application will depend on future
economic conditions, including the Group’s borrowing rate at 1 January 2019, the composition of the Group’s lease portfolio at that date, the Group’s
latest assessment of whether it will exercise any lease renewal options and the extent to which the Group chooses to use practical expedients and
recognition exemptions.
In addition, the nature of expenses related to those leases will now change as IFRS 16 replaces the straight-line operating lease expense with a
depreciation charge for right-of-use assets and interest expense on lease liabilities.
No significant impact is expected for the Group’s finance leases.
Transition
As a lessee, the Group can either apply the standard using a:
-retrospective approach; or
-modified retrospective approach with optional practical expedients.

Risk management
The Group’s international operations expose it to a variety of financial risks that include the effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates (foreign
exchange risk), market prices, interest rates, credit risks, liquidity and operational risk. The Group’s financing and financial risk management activities
are centralised into Group Treasury (GT) to achieve benefits of scale and control. GT manages financial exposures of the Group centrally in a manner
consistent with underlying business risks. GT manages only those risks generated by the underlying commercial operations and speculative transactions
are not undertaken.
Through the Group’s risk management process, risks faced by the Group are identified and analysed to set appropriate actions to mitigate risk, and to
monitor risks and adherence to the overall risk strategy. Risk management activities are reviewed when appropriate to reflect changes in market conditions
and the Group’s activities.
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management activities.
The Group’s Audit Committee oversees how management manages the Group’s risk management process, and reviews the adequacy of the risk
management activities in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The Group Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal
Audit undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management activities, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

(a)

Market risk

(i)
Foreign exchange risk
The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the Euro,
GBP, Egyptian Pound, Turkish Lira and Swiss Franc. In respect of the Group’s transactions denominated in the US Dollar the Group is not exposed to
the foreign exchange risk as the AED is pegged to the US Dollar. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign operations (note 30).
(ii)

Price risk

The Group does not have investment in securities and is not exposed to equity price risk. The Group does not enter into commodity contracts other than
to meet the Group’s expected usage and sale requirements, and is exposed to commodities price risk. However, the Group has entered into a derivative
financial instrument whereby the Group will earn a minimum return of 1%, the value of which is driven by a combination of interest rate movements and
movements in foreign exchange rate of currencies that underlie the derivative financial instrument. The principal amount under the derivative financial
instrument is guaranteed in case the Group does not liquidate the structure before the contractual maturity of the instrument.

(iii)

Interest rate risk

The effective rates of interest on the Group’s bank liabilities are linked to the prevailing bank rates. The Group does not hedge its interest rate exposure.

(b)
Credit risk
Credit risk is managed on a Group basis, except for credit risk relating to accounts receivable balances. Each subsidiary is responsible for managing and
analysing the credit risk for each of their new clients before standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered.
The Group, in the ordinary course of business, accepts letters of credit/guarantee as well as post dated cheques from major customers. The Group
establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimated losses in respect of trade and other receivables. The main components of this
allowance are a specific loss component that relates to individually significant exposures, and a collective loss component established for groups of similar
assets in respect of losses that have been incurred but not yet identified. The collective loss allowance is determined based on historical data of payment
statistics for similar financial assets and as per Group policy.
Credit risk arising from cash and bank balances and deposits with banks and financial institutions, is managed by making deposits taking into account
the bank’s/financial institution’s financial position, past experiences and other relevant factors.

The lessee applies the election consistently to all of its leases. The Group plans to apply IFRS 16 initially on 1 January 2019, using the modified
retrospective approach. Therefore, the cumulative effect of adopting IFRS 16 will be recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings at 1 January 2019, with no restatement of comparative information. When applying the modified retrospective approach to leases previously
classified as operating leases under IAS 17, the lessee can elect, on a lease-by-lease basis, whether to apply a number of practical expedients on
transition. The Group is assessing the potential impact of using these practical expedients.
The Group is not required to make any adjustments for leases in which it is a lessor except where it is an intermediate lessor in a sub-lease.
Other standards
The following amended standards and interpretations are not expected to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

-

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle – Amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28.
Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions (Amendments to IFRS 2).
Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40).
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associates or Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28).
IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Considerations.
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments.

3

Financial risk management

(c)

Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed at a Group level. GT monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash
to meet operational needs while maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing facilities at all times so that the Group does not
breach borrowing limits or covenants (where applicable) on any of its borrowing facilities. Such forecasting takes into consideration the Group’s debt
financing plans, covenant compliance, and, if applicable external regulatory or legal requirements – for example, currency restrictions.
Surplus cash held by the operating entities are transferred to GT as per the Group’s cash pooling arrangements with a bank. GT invests surplus cash in
time deposits with appropriate maturities or sufficient liquidity to provide adequate head-room as determined by the above-mentioned forecasts.
Typically the Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational and capital expenditures in accordance with the Group’s
working capital requirements, including servicing financial obligations; this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably
be predicted, such as natural disasters.
The Group maintains the following lines of credit:
•
Facility for AED 767,340 thousand, which includes overdraft, guarantee line and import credit line. These facilities carry interest of EIBOR /
LIBOR/ mid corridor rate plus margin.
•
AED 145,195 thousand, short term loans which carries interest rate of EIBOR/LIBOR/mid corridor rate plus margin.
•
AED 278,928 thousand, long term loans which carries interest rate of LIBOR/EIBOR plus margin.

3.1
Financial risk factors
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value risk, interest rate risk, cash flow risk and price
risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and operational risk.

(d)
Operational Risk
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the Group’s processes, personnel, technology
and infrastructure, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and
generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour. Operational risks arise from all of the Group’s operations.

The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

The Group’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses and damage to the Group’s reputation with overall
cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures that restrict initiative and creativity.
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3

Financial risk management (continued)

4

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

Income tax provision
Management has taken into consideration the requirements for tax provision. Management has estimated the tax provision based on the year’s performance
after adjustment of non taxable items. The tax provision was calculated based on the tax rate of the country where operations were performed taking into
consideration the exemptions that could be claimed by conventions either locally or internationally as at the date of financial position.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address operational risk is assigned to senior management within each
business unit. This responsibility is supported by the practicing and managing of key operational risks, for example:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Adequate internal controls
Reconciliations and monitoring of transactions
Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements
Policies and procedures compliance
Business resumption and IT disaster recovery plans
Code of business conduct
Adequate insurance coverage
Commodity Risk Management Committee
QA compliance function independent of manufacturing
Enterprise Risk Management
Monthly and quarterly business reviews
Training and professional development of talents

Accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

Intangibles fair value estimation
Management has estimated the fair value of the spring water usage rights based on ten years estimate. Subsequent changes in the term of license or
water capacity levels may change the fair value of the rights.
Measurement of fair values
A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and
liabilities. The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a valuation team that has overall
responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values.
The valuation team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes or
pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the valuation team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion
that such valuations meet the requirements of IFRS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.
Significant valuation issues are reported to the Group’s Audit Committee.

Compliance with Group standards is supported by periodic reviews undertaken by Internal Audit. The results of Internal Audit reviews are discussed with
the management of the business unit to which they relate, with summaries submitted to the Audit Committee and senior management of the Group.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different
levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

3.2
Capital risks management
Management’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development
of the business.

Level 1:
Level 2:
		
Level 3:

The Board seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher level of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position.
There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the year.

4

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices).
inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is
categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.
The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in (note 2),
management has made the following judgements which have a significant effect on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Impairment losses on trade receivables
Management reviews its receivables to assess impairment at each reporting date. In determining whether an impairment loss should be recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, management makes judgements as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows.
Accordingly, an allowance for impairment is made where there is an identified loss event or condition which, based on previous experience, is evidence
of a reduction in the recoverability of the cash flows.

Provision for obsolescence on inventories
Management reviews the movement in ageing and movements of its inventory items to assess loss on account of obsolescence on a regular basis. In
determining whether provision for obsolescence should be recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, management makes judgements as to
whether there is any observable data indicating that future saleability of the product and the net realisable value for such product and expired or close to
expiry raw material and finished goods.
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
Management assigns useful lives and residual values to items of property, plant and equipment based on the intended use of the assets and the expected
economic lives of those assets. Subsequent changes in circumstances such as technological advances or prospective utilisation of the assets concerned
could result in the actual useful lives or residual values differing from the initial estimates.
Impairment of other assets
At each reporting date, management assesses whether there is any indication that its assets may be impaired. The determination of allowance for
impairment loss requires considerable judgment and involves evaluating factors including industry and market conditions.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the relevant notes.

5

Segment reporting

Information about reportable segment for the year ended 31 December
The Group has two reportable segments, as described below. The reportable segments offer different products and services, and are managed separately
because they require different technology and operational marketing strategies. For each of the strategic business units, the Group’s Executive Management
review internal management reports on at least a quarterly basis.
The following summary describes the operations in each of the Group’s reportable segment:

Agri Business Division (ABD)
•

Flour and Animal Feed, includes manufacturing and distribution of flour and animal feed.

Consumer Business Division (CBD)
•

•

Bottled Water and Beverages includes manufacturing and distribution of drinking water, water based drinks and juices.
-- Business operation in Turkey is of similar nature as “Bottled Water”, hence, it is also reported under CBD.
-- Business operation of Al Bayan is manufacturing and distribution of drinking water, hence, it is also reported under CBD.
-- Business operation of Delta Water is manufacturing and distribution of drinking water, hence, it is also reported under CBD.
Food includes manufacturing and distribution of tomato and chilli paste, fruit concentrate, frozen vegetables, fresh dairy products, and frozen
baked products.
-- Business operation in Egypt is of similar nature as “Food” hence it is also reported under CBD.

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below. Performance is measured based on segment profit, as included in the
internal management reports data reviewed by the Group’s CEO. Segment profit is used to measure performance as management believes that such
information is the most relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within these industries. Inter-segment
pricing is determined on an arm’s length basis.

Impairment of non-current assets
The carrying values of all non-current assets are reviewed for impairment, either on a stand-alone basis or as part of a larger cash generating unit, when
there is an indication that the assets might be impaired. Additionally, goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually. Any provision for impairment is recognised to the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Impairment of goodwill is not reversed. Impairment
losses on other non-current assets are only reversed if there is a change in estimates used to determine recoverable amounts and only to the extent that
the revised recoverable amounts do not exceed the carrying values that would have existed, net of depreciation or amortisation, had no impairment loss
been recognised.
Subsidiary
The Group has a 50% ownership interest in Al Rammah National For General Trading and Contracting Company WLL, with the other 50% owned by Al
Wafir Marketing Services Company K.S.C.C. Al Rammah National For General Trading and Contracting Company WLL is accounted for as a subsidiary
of the Group on the basis that the Group is able to exert management control over this entity based on contractual shareholders’ agreement.
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5

5

Segment reporting (continued)

Segment reporting (continued)

Segment wise operating results of the Group, for the year are as follows:
Consumer Business Division
(CBD)

Agri Business Division
(ABD)
Flour and
Animal Feed
31 December
2017
AED’000

31 December 2017
AED’000

Bottled Water and
Beverages

31 December 31 December
2016
2017
AED’000
AED’000

Food

31 December 31 December
2016
2017
AED’000
AED’000

Total
CBD Total

31 December
2016
AED’000

31 December
2017
AED’000

31 December
2016
AED’000

31 December
2017
AED’000

31 December
2016
AED’000

959,215

1,105,927

915,115

734,675

173,627

171,339

1,088,742

906,014

2,047,957

2,011,941

Gross profit

207,136

319,570

456,062

369,879

30,051

21,336

486,113

391,215

693,249

710,785

17

20

11

11

-

1,827

11

1,838

28

1,858

(199)

(109)

(4,240)

(755)

(873)

(677)

(5,113)

(1,432)

(5,312)

(1,541)

27,247

26,247

76,102

59,656

680

1,085

76,782

60,741

104,029

86,988

119,973

238,941

173,218

135,688

(2,037)

(12,741)

171,181

122,947

291,154

361,888

Finance expense
Depreciation
expense
Reportable
segment profit /
(loss) after tax

Material non cash items;
Impairment
losses on
trade receivables
(net)

1,404

(546)

5,251

4,025

(133)

510

3,892

1,022,318

784,628

Consolidated total assets

2,942,861

2,545,104

Agri Business Division

171,694

133,426

Consumer Business Division

253,756

196,582

Total liabilities for reportable segments

425,450

330,008

Other unallocated amounts

670,912

529,410

Consolidated total liabilities

1,096,362

859,418

5,761

5,296

5,215

6

Cost of Sales
31 December 2017
AED’000

Consumer Business Division (CBD)

Total

31 December 2017
AED’000

31 December 2016
AED’000

31 December 2017
AED’000

31 December 2016
AED’000

31 December 2017
AED’000

31 December 2016
AED’000

Segment assets

564,719

626,308

1,355,824

1,134,168

1,920,543

1,760,476

Segment liabilities

171,694

133,426

253,756

196,582

425,450

330,008

13,562

28,050

110,692

167,921

124,254

195,971

982,002

950,019

Salaries and benefits

159,867

172,897

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

91,636

76,318

Utilities

52,373

38,047

Maintenance

32,566

30,782

Rent expense

6,592

10,721

7

Reportable
segment totals
AED’000

Unallocated
AED’000

678,501

710,785

(15,904)

694,881

20,146

20,174

1,858

15,405

17,263

(5,312)

(13,557)

(18,869)

(1,541)

(25,329)

(26,870)

Depreciation

104,029

3,332

107,361

86,988

3,763

90,751

Capital expenditure

124,254

444

124,698

195,971

1,893

197,864

Gross profit

693,249

(14,748)

28

Finance income
Finance expense

Profit for the year
Total profit for reportable segments

Consolidated totals
AED’000

31 December 2017
AED’000

Consolidated totals
AED’000

Net finance income
Non-controlling interest
Consolidated profit for the period after income tax

31 December 2017
AED’000

187,103

133,286

41,692

61,244

Transportation

55,764

59,306

Rent expense

10,561

7,385

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

7,345

5,648

Maintenance

7,227

3,803

Royalty fees

4,669

4,692

18,720

16,075

333,081

291,439

8

31 December 2016
AED’000

291,154

361,888

(93,405)

(97,694)

6,589

(9,924)

204,338

254,270

1,752

-

206,090

254,270

31 December 2016
AED’000

Marketing expenses

Others

Unallocated amounts
Other operating expenses

1,317,060

Selling and distribution expenses

Salaries and benefits

2016

Unallocated
AED’000

38,276

1,369,456

During the year, the Company has updated its cost centres for a better allocation of salaries and benefit expenses. As a result, some of these expenses
have been reclassified from cost of sales to selling and distribution expenses.

Reconciliations of reportable segments’ gross profit, interest income and expense, depreciation, capital expenditure, revenues, profit or loss, assets
and liabilities.

Reportable
segment totals
AED’000

44,420

Cost of raw materials for flour and feed products is stated after the deduction of the Abu Dhabi Government compensation amounting to AED 146,752
thousand (2016: AED 269,024 thousand). The purpose of the compensation is to partially reduce the impact of increased and volatile global grain
prices on food retail prices for the consumers in the Emirate of Abu Dhabi (note 20).

Others:

2017

31 December 2016
AED’000

Raw materials

Others
Agri Business Division (ABD)

Capital expenditure

Other unallocated amounts
Segment Liabilities

External revenues

Finance income

31 December 2016
AED’000

General and administrative expenses
31 December 2017
AED’000

31 December 2016
AED’000

Salaries and benefits

87,821

82,997

Legal and professional fees

17,544

19,292

Maintenance

13,565

12,253

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

7,864

8,340

Amortisation of intangible assets

2,656

1,426
6,245

Allowance for impairment of trade receivables

6,136

Reportable segment assets and liabilities are as follows:

Rent expense

2,111

1,645

Segment Assets

Others

21,078

15,050

158,775

147,248

Agri Business Division

564,719

626,308

Consumer Business Division

1,355,824

1,134,168

Total assets for reportable segments

1,920,543

1,760,476
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15

Research and development costs
31 December 2017
AED’000

Salaries and benefits

Property, plant and equipment

31 December 2016
AED’000

5,481

4,394

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

516

445

Others

665

633

6,662

5,472

Land and
buildings
AED’000

Plant and
equipment
AED’000

Furniture and
fixtures
AED’000

Motor
vehicles
AED’000

Capital work in
progress
AED’000

Total
AED’000

Cost
At 1 January 2016

540,588

897,376

59,842

58,350

87,710

1,643,866

Additions

9,814

24,671

5,109

9,341

148,929

197,864

Transfers

62,782

73,044

4,435

1,825

(142,086)

-

-

(32,815)

(72)

(1,421)

-

(34,308)

Currency retranslation

(9,015)

(11,823)

(987)

(803)

(4,661)

(27,289)

At 31 December 2016

604,169

950,453

68,327

67,292

89,892

1,780,133

Additions

3,239

18,162

1,301

3,795

98,201

124,698

Other income

Transfers

18,980

42,518

680

184

(62,362)

-

Management fee

8,886

9,508

Acquisition*

40,910

45,075

107

4,060

1,505

91,657

Income on sale of raw material / scrap

1,910

1,697

Disposals/write-offs

(1,760)

(4,591)

(107)

(4,641)

-

(11,099)

(347)

(1,446)

(57)

(21)

(467)

(2,338)

-

140

665,191

1,050,171

70,251

70,669

126,769

1,983,051

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment

8,745

-

Others

3,851

7,365

At 1 January 2016

183,015

456,528

41,787

29,045

-

710,375

23,392

18,710

Charge for the year

15,653

58,293

7,373

9,432

-

90,751

-

(30,476)

(72)

(682)

-

(31,230)

(1,620)

(3,707)

(555)

(386)

-

(6,268)

Disposals/write-offs

10

Other income - net
31 December 2017
AED’000

Insurance claim

31 December 2016
AED’000

Currency retranslation
At 31 December 2017
Accumulated depreciation

Disposals

Other expenses

Currency retranslation

Loss on sale of property plant and equipment

-

(1,898)

At 31 December 2016

197,048

480,638

48,533

37,409

-

763,628

Professional fees

-

(3,308)

At 1 January 2017

197,048

480,638

48,533

37,409

-

763,628

23,392

13,504

Charge for the year

16,635

71,123

7,340

12,263

-

107,361

Disposals

(1,014)

(3,378)

(101)

(4,585)

-

(9,078)

(21)

(377)

(32)

(8)

-

(438)

212,648

548,006

55,740

45,079

-

861,473

31 December 2017

452,543

502,165

14,511

25,590

126,769

1,121,578

31 December 2016

407,121

469,815

19,794

29,883

89,892

1,016,505

31 December 2017
AED’000

31 December 2016
AED’000

Other income - net

Management fee represents the wheat storage fees charged to an Abu Dhabi Government entity as part of food security program.

11

Currency retranslation
At 31 December 2017

Finance income

Net book amount
31 December 2017
AED’000

Interest income
Gain on derivative instrument

31 December 2016
AED’000

16,496

12,482

3,678

4,781

20,174

17,263
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

12

Finance expense

Decrease in advance for property, plant and equipment
31 December 2017
AED’000

Interest expense
Foreign exchange losses

13

31 December 2016
AED’000

16,967

9,964

1,902

16,906

18,869

26,870

Income tax and zakat

The Group’s operation in Egypt, Turkey and Oman are subject to corporate taxation. Provision is made for taxes at rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the statement of financial position date on taxable profits of overseas subsidiaries in accordance with the fiscal regulations of the countries
in which they operate.
However, Zakat is provided in accordance with the Regulations of the General Authority of Zakat and Tax (GAZT) in Saudi Arabia and on accrual basis.
The provision is charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Differences, if any, resulting from the final assessments are adjusted in the
year of their finalisation.

14

Basic and diluted earnings per share

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 was based on the profit attributable to shareholders
amounting to AED 206,090 thousand (2016: AED 254,270 thousand) and the weighted average number of shares outstanding of 600,000
thousand shares (2016: 600,000 thousand shares).
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Acquisition of property, plant and equipment in the statement of cash flows

124,698

197,864

(6,069)

(23,757)

118,629

174,107

* Acquisition represents assets relating to Delta Bottling Water Factory Company Limited and Al Rammah National For General Trading and Contracting
Company WLL acquired during 2017.

16

Goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the Group’s Cash Generating Units where the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. The aggregate carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each unit is as follows:
31 December 2017
AED’000

31 December 2016
AED’000

Agri business division

61,855

61,855

Consumer business division (UAE operations)

31,131

31,131

2,486

2,486

92,864

92,864

Consumer business division (Turkish operations)
Consumer business division (Al Bayan operations)
Consumer business division (KSA operations)

At 1 January 2017
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87,597

-

275,933

188,336

275,933

188,336
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16

18

Goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amounts of Agri Business Division and Consumer Business Division (UAE operations) cash-generating units were based on their
values in use determined by management. The carrying amounts of these units were determined to be lower than their recoverable amounts.
Values in use were determined by discounting the future cash flows generated from the continuing use of these units. Cash flows were projected based
on past experience and the five year business plan and were based on the following key assumptions:

Inventories (continued)

The movement in the provision for slow moving inventory was as follows:

Opening balance
Acquired during the year

Agri business division

Consumer business
division (UAE
operations)

Consumer business
division (Turkey
operations)

Consumer business
division (Al Bayan
operations)

Consumer business
division (KSA
operations)

Anticipated annual revenue growth (%)

1% - 9%

9% - 11%

5% - 40%

6% - 10%

3% - 18%

Discount rate (%)

11.00%

11.00%

15.00%

11.00%

13.45%

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s assessment of future trends in the food and beverage industry and are based
on both external and internal sources.

17

Intangible assets
Trademark
AED’000

At 1 January 2016
Additions

26,733

License
AED’000

-

Spring water rights
AED’000

Others
AED’000

8,114

Total
AED’000

607

35,454

-

-

-

207

207

(1,426)

-

-

-

(1,426)

-

-

(1,604)

(23)

(1,627)

At 31 December 2016

25,307

-

6,510

791

32,608

Acquisition

34,382

26,521

-

-

60,903

Amortisation

(2,616)

-

-

(40)

(2,656)

-

-

(308)

(160)

(468)

57,073

26,521

6,202

591

90,387

Amortisation
Currency retranslation

Currency retranslation
At 31 December 2017

31 December 2017
AED’000

31 December 2016
AED’000

12,268

11,077

210

-

9,696

4,377

Reversal/write offs

(3,824)

(3,185)

Closing balance

18,350

12,268

31 December 2017
AED’000

31 December 2016
AED’000

Trade receivables

359,259

293,841

Allowance for impairment loss

(24,561)

(13,400)

334,698

280,441

39,477

40,786

Charge for the year

19

Trade and other receivables

Prepayments
Other receivables

30,561

25,472

404,736

346,699

The Group’s exposure to credit and currency risk, and impairment loss related to trade and other receivables is disclosed in note 30.

20

Government compensation receivable

Receivable at beginning of the year from the Government of Abu Dhabi
Compensation for the year
Amounts received during the year
Balance as at 31 December

21

31 December 2017
AED’000

31 December 2016
AED’000

95,357

80,103

146,752

269,024

(206,481)

(253,770)

35,628

95,357

31 December 2017
AED’000

31 December 2016
AED’000

2,221

1,362

Cash and bank balances

Spring water rights is considered to have an indefinite life as per the term of agreement. The Group is not aware of any material legal, regulatory,
contractual, competitive, economic or other factor which could limit its useful life. Accordingly, it is not amortised.
Values in use were determined by discounting the future cash flows generated from the continuing use of the units.

Cash in hand

Cash flows were projected based on past experience and the ten year business plan and were based on the following key assumptions:

Current and savings account

82,604

65,276

Cash and bank balances

84,825

66,638

Anticipated annual revenue growth (%)

5% - 40%

(26,947)

(26,948)

Bank overdrafts (note 22)

(4,025)

(18,317)

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s assessment of future trends in the food and beverage industry and are based
on both external and internal sources.

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows

53,853

21,373

Cash and bank balances

84,825

66,638

During 2017, the Group acquired trademarks “Al Ain” and “Bambini” relating to Delta Bottled Water Factory Company Limited and license to produce
bottled water for Al Rammah National For General Trading and Contracting Company WLL.

Fixed deposits

608,017

485,817

Cash and bank balances including fixed deposits

692,842

552,455

Discount rate (%)

18

15.00%

Inventories
31 December 2017
AED’000

31 December 2016
AED’000

149,001

182,892

9,932

8,976

Finished goods

53,220

56,053

Spare parts and consumable materials

57,555

54,522

Goods in transit

62,237

11,045

Raw and packing materials
Work in progress

Provision for slow moving inventory

331,945

313,488

(18,350)

(12,268)

313,595

301,220

Escrow account (for dividend distribution 2009 to 2014)

Fixed deposits are for a period not more than one year (2016: not more than one year) carrying interest rates varying from 2.60% - 3.60% (2016:
2.20% - 3.30%).
Escrow account represents the amount set aside for payment of dividends. Equivalent amount has been recorded as liability in trade and other
payables. This restricted cash balance has not been included in the cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statements.

22

Bank borrowings

This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Group’s interest-bearing loans and borrowings, which are measured at amortised cost.
Current liabilities
Credit facilities
Short term loan
Bank overdraft

31 December 2017
AED’000

31 December 2016
AED’000

265,917

231,541

44,081

55,101

4,025

18,317

314,023

304,959

278,928

165,303

Non-current liabilities
Term loans***
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24

Transactions with related parties (continued)

(b)

Due to related parties

Bank borrowings (continued)

Terms and repayment schedule
Amounts in AED’000
31 December 2016

31 December 2017
Interest
Rate

Currency

Short term loan/bank overdraft

USD/AED/EGP

LIBOR/EIBOR/mid corridor
rate + margin *

Year of
maturity

2018

Credit facilities**

USD/AED

LIBOR/EIBOR + margin *

2018

Credit facilities (Capex) **

Face
value/ limit

145,195
717,340

Face
value/ limit

Carrying
amount

717,340

265,917

73,418
231,541

USD/AED

LIBOR/EIBOR + margin *

2018

50,000

-

50,000

-

Term loan 1***

USD

LIBOR + margin*

2020

165,303

165,303

165,303

165,303

Term loan 2****

AED

EIBOR + margin*

2022

113,625

113,625

-

-

1,191,463

592,951

1,077,666

470,262

Total

31 December 2016
AED’000

Opening balance 1 January

226

411

Other expenses

255

272

Payments

(60)

(457)

Closing balance at 31 December

421

226

1,579

102

General Holding Corporation PJSC (SENAAT) – parent

Carrying amount

145,023

48,106

31 December 2017
AED’000

*Margin on the above loans and facilities varies from 0.50% - 1.35% (2016: 0.50% - 1.25%). Average interest rate on loan and facilities in Turkey amounting to AED
1,989 thousand (2016: AED 3,882 thousand) is 11.70% (2016: 11.70%).
**Credit facilities includes facilities with face value AED 350,000 thousand and credit facility (Capex) of face value AED 50,000 thousand which are secured by a floating
charge over the current assets, inventory and receivables of the Group.

Al Foah Company LLC - associate
Opening balance 1 January
Local purchases
Other expenses
Payments
Closing balance at 31 December

13,932

15,108

-

(2,097)

(12,992)

(11,534)

2,519

1,579

2,940

1,805

31 December 2017
AED’000

31 December 2016
AED’000

17,964

22,162

*** The Group has a long-term loan of AED 165,303 thousand for a tenure of five years. The loan is secured by floating charges over the current assets, inventory and
receivables of the Group.
**** During 2017, the Group availed a loan of AED 183,625 thousand for a tenure of five years repayable in 2022 with an option for early payment. The Group has
repaid an amount of AED 70,000 thousand during the year. The loan is secured by floating charges over the current assets, inventories and trade receivables of the Group.

23

Trade and other payables
31 December 2017
AED’000

31 December 2016
AED’000

Trade payables

154,941

110,448

Accruals

197,865

149,189

72,698

59,001

425,504

318,638

Other payables

24

Transactions with key management personnel
Key management personnel compensation are as follows:

Short term benefits
Long term benefits

25

31 December 2017
AED’000

31 December 2016
AED’000

Opening balance 1 January

316

199

Sales during the year

594

664

(576)

(547)

334

316

Emirates Iron & Steel Company LLC – associated company

Amount received
Closing balance at 31 December

4,713
26,875

2017
AED’000

2016
AED’000

61,101

49,343

9,015

-

Provision for end of service benefits

Transactions with related parties

The Group, in the ordinary course of business, enters into transactions at agreed terms and conditions which are carried out on an arm’s length basis,
with other business enterprises or individuals that fall within the definition of a related party contained in International Accounting Standard 24. The
Company has a related party relationship with the Group entities, its executive officers and business entities over which they can exercise significant
influence or which can exercise significant influence over the Group.
The volume of related party transactions, outstanding balances and related expenses and income for the year are as follows:
(a)
Due from related parties

3,436
21,400

Amounts recognised in balance sheet
Balance at start of the year
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Service cost (including interest costs)
Benefit payments
Loss/(gain) on re-measurement
Balance at end of the year

10,567

15,016

(11,460)

(3,095)

5,744

(163)

74,967

61,101

8,595

6,664

-

6,794

Amounts recognised in profit or loss account
Current service cost
Past service cost
Interest expense

1,972
10,567

1,558
15,016

Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
31 December 2017
AED’000

31 December 2016
AED’000

Dubai Cable Company (Private) Limited - associated company
Opening balance 1 January
Sales during the year
Amount received
Closing balance at 31 December

64

41

185

177

(196)

(154)

53

64

387

380

Effect of changes in demographic assumptions

(242)

489

Effect of changes in financial assumptions

2,420

(4,028)

Effect of experience adjustments

3,566

3,376

5,744

(163)

2017

2016

3.50%

3.75%

5.00% for the first
year and thereafter
3.00% p.a

0% in 2017 and 3.00%
thereafter

Significant actuarial assumptions
Discount rate

Rate of salary increase

66

AGTHIA | ANNUAL REPORT 2017

AGTHIA | ANNUAL REPORT 2017

67

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017

For the year ended 31 December 2017

25

28

Provision for end of service benefits (continued)
2017
AED’000

2016
AED’000

Share capital

The share capital includes 526,650 thousand shares of a par value of AED 1 each, which have been issued for in-kind contribution.

Sensitivity analysis
Discount rate
- 50 basis points

31 December 2017
AED’000

31 December 2016
AED’000

1,000,000

1,000,000

600,000

600,000

Authorised share capital
(1,000,000 thousand ordinary shares of AED 1 each)

3,465

1,913

(3,264)

(1,782)

Issued and fully paid share capital

- 50 basis points

(2,997)

(1,581)

During the Annual General Assembly held on March 24, 2016, the shareholders’ approved resolutions for authorised capital of AED 1 billion with a
remaining issued and paid up capital of AED 600 million.

+ 50 basis points

(3,138)

1,680

+ 50 basis points
Salary increase rate

The Group has not purchased any shares during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

The Group expects total benefit payments of AED 10,453 thousand in 2018 (2016: AED 13,033 thousand in 2017).

29

26

In accordance with the UAE Federal Law No 2 of 2015 and the Company’s Articles of Association, 10% of the profit for each year is transferred to the
legal reserve until this reserve equals 50% of the paid up share capital. The legal reserve is restricted and not available for distribution.

Deferred tax liability

Deferred tax assets and liabilities resulted from the temporary differences between the tax base of an asset and liability and the carrying amount of
these assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements.

30

Legal reserve

Financial instruments

Credit risk

31 December 2017
AED’000

31 December 2016
AED’000

Balance at 1 January

323

918

Tax expense for the year

342

349

(665)

(944)

Trade receivables

323

Other receivables
Due from related parties

24

387

380

Government compensation receivable

20

35,628

95,357

Cash at banks

21

690,621

551,093

1,091,895

952,743

Currency retranslation

-

The analysis of deferred income tax is as follows:
31 December 2017
AED’000

31 December 2016
AED’000

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:
31 December 2017
AED’000

31 December 2016
AED’000

19

334,698

280,441

19

30,561

25,472

Notes

Deferred tax asset
Current assets

-

296

Current liabilities

-

-

Gross deferred tax assets

-

296

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with overall exposure being spread over a large number of customers.

Property, plant and equipment

-

(68)

Impairment losses

Others

-

(551)

Gross deferred tax liabilities

-

(619)

Net deferred tax liabilities

-

(323)

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables. The amounts presented in the consolidated statement of financial position are
net of allowances for doubtful receivables as estimated by the Group’s management based on prior experience and the current economic environment.

The ageing of trade receivables at the reporting date was:
31 December 2017
AED’000

31 December 2016
AED’000

Trade receivables not impaired:

27

Other financial assets and liabilities

Not due

187,472

177,953

(a)

During 2016, the Group entered into a forward contract with a bank to buy AED against the Turkish Lira (TRY) to hedge its receivables in TRY.
Under the arrangement, the Group has fixed the rate for buying AED against TRY to manage its TRY/AED foreign exchange rate risk. This matured
on 15 March 2017.

Past Due 0-90 Days

96,230

79,028

Past Due 91-180 Days

(b)

During 2014, the Group entered into a derivative instrument with a bank whereby:
(i)

Bank lends the Group USD 50,000 thousand at Libor + 0.90%

(ii)

The Group invests USD 50,000 thousand in a structured product whereby the Group will earn a minimum return of 1% + a rate based
on the performance of a foreign exchange index created by the bank.

32,471

18,613

Past Due 181-270 Days

4,773

3,659

Past Due 271-360 Days

5,042

1,041

361 days and Above

8,710

147

Trade receivables past due and provided for impairment:

The principal amount of USD 50,000 thousand is guaranteed in case the Group does not liquidate the structure before the contractual maturity of the
instrument (5 years). Under the instrument, lending arrangement and the arrangement to invest in the index are contained in one agreement and not
contractually separable.

Past Due 91-180 Days

1,690

241

Past Due 181-270 Days

2,403

1,341

Past Due 271-360 Days

1,615

697

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over the counter derivatives) are determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses counterparty valuation at the end of each reporting date. This derivative instrument is classified as a level 2 security.

361 days and Above

31 December 2017
AED’000

31 December 2016
AED’000

Derivative instrument liability

-

7,235

Other liability

-

54

-

7,289

3,882

1,587

Derivative instrument asset
Other assets

68

5

-

3,887

1,587
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18,853

11,121

359,259

293,841

31 December 2017
AED’000

31 December 2016
AED’000

13,400

8,185

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows:

Balance at 1 January
Acquired during the year

5,864

-

Provision for receivables

6,136

6,245

(839)

(1,030)

24,561

13,400

Write offs
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30

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Liquidity risk

Market risk (continued)

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities:

Foreign currency risk (continued)

31 December 2017

31 December 2016
Carrying value

Contractual
cash flows

Up to 1 year

1-2 years

2-5 years

More than
5 Years

425,504

425,504

425,504

-

-

-

EUR (strengthening by 2.05%)

-

(362)

2,940

2,940

2,940

-

-

-

CHF (strengthening by 2.65%)

-

(80)

592,951

621,317

324,139

8,447

288,731

-

SAR (strengthening by 0.09%)

-

(1)

Long term liability

-

-

-

-

-

-

GBP (strengthening by 1.42%)

-

(14)

Derivative instrument liability

-

-

-

-

-

-

BHD (weakening by 0.08%)

-

-

1,021,395

1,049,761

752,583

8,447

288,731

EGP (weakening by 3.87%)

(334)

-

TRY (weakening by 6.66%)

(1,847)

-

(2,181)

(457)

31 December 2017
AED’000

31 December 2016
AED’000

608,017

485,817

592,951

470,262

Amounts in AED’000
Trade and other payables
Due to related parties
Bank borrowings

Equity

31 December 2016
Amounts in AED’000
Trade and other payables
Due to related parties
Bank borrowings
Long term liability
Derivative instrument liability

Profit (loss)
AED’000

AED’000

Carrying value

Contractual cash
flows

Up to 1 year

1-2 years

2-5 years

More than 5 Years

318,638

318,638

318,638

-

-

-

Interest rate risk

1,805

1,805

1,805

-

-

-

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial instruments was;

470,262

484,859

309,851

3,884

171,124

377

377

54

323

-

-

Fixed rate instruments

7,235

7,235

7,235

-

-

-

Financial assets

798,317

812,914

637,583

4,207

171,124

-

Variable rate instruments

The above analysis is based on currency fluctuations during January 2018 (2016: January 2017).

Market risk

Financial liabilities

Foreign currency risk

The fair value of the Group’s financial instruments is not materially different from their carrying amount.

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows based on notional amounts:

At 31 December 2017, if interest rates on borrowings had been 1% higher/lower with all other variables held constant, profit for the year would have
been AED 4,883 thousand (2016: AED 3,686 thousand) lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest expense.

2016

2017
Amounts in ’000
Foreign purchases

EUR

SAR

CHF

GBP

BHD

EUR

SAR

CHF

GBP

BHD

3,948

101

295

240

114

4,568

1,247

834

225

45

Capital management
The Group’s objectives for managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an efficient capital structure to optimise the cost of capital. In maintaining an
appropriate capital structure and providing returns for shareholders in 2017, the Group provided returns to Shareholders in the form of dividends for
the year 2016, current details of which are included in the statement of changes in equity for the year.

The following exchange rates were applicable during the year:
Average Rate

Reporting Date Rate

Fair value hierarchy

2017

2016

2017

2016

EUR (EURO)

4.149

4.064

4.399

3.861

CHF (SWISS FRANC)

3.730

3.728

3.761

3.601

EGP (EGYPTIAN POUND)

0.206

0.391

0.206

0.202

SAR (SAUDI RIYAL)

0.979

0.978

0.979

0.978

TRY (TURKISH LIRA)

1.008

1.218

0.970

1.039

GBP (BRITISH POUND)

4.732

4.976

4.954

4.530

BHD (BAHRAINI DINAR)

9.660

9.663

9.700

9.678

A strengthening / weakening of the AED, as indicated below, against the EUR, CHF, EGP, SAR, TRY, INR, GBP and BHD at 31 December would have
increased / (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis is based on foreign currency exchange rate variances that
the Group considered to be reasonably possible. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis
is performed on the same basis as for 2016, except that the reasonably possible foreign exchange rate variances were different, as indicated below.

The fair value hierarchy levels have been defined as follows:
Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as priced) or indirectly
		
(i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
31 December 2017
Carrying value
AED’000

Equity

AED’000

Profit (loss)
AED’000

EUR (strengthening by 3.75%)

-

(651)

CHF (strengthening by 4.50%)

-

(50)

41

-

GBP (strengthening by 4.93%)

-

(59)

BHD (strengthening by 0.11%)

-

(1)

EGP (strengthening by 0.53%)

95

-

TRY (strengthening by 0.78%)

387

-

(363)

-

160

(761)

SAR (weakening by 0.07%)

KWD (strengthening by 0.53%)
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Level 1 AED’000 Level 2 AED’000

Level 3 AED’000

Total AED’000

Assets measured at fair value
Other financial assets

3,887

-

3,887

-

3,887

365,259

-

-

-

-

Assets not measured at fair value
Loans and receivables net of advances and prepayments

31 December 2017

Fair value

Due from related parties
Government compensation receivable
Cash and bank balances

387

-

-

-

35,628

-

-

-

692,842

-

-

-

-

1,094,116
Liabilities measured at fair value

-

-

-

-

-

Other financial liabilities

-

-

-

-

-

Trade and other payables

393,992

-

-

-

-

Bank borrowings

592,951

-

-

-

-

2,940

-

-

-

-

989,883

-

-

-

-

Liabilities not measured at fair value

Due to related parties
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Financial Instruments (continued)

33

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Carrying value

31 December 2016

AED’000

Acquisition of a subsidiary (continued)
Fair value AED’000

Fair value
Level 1 AED’000 Level 2 AED’000

Level 3 AED’000

Net assets acquired

Total AED’000

Assets measured at fair value

Property, plant and equipment

Other financial assets

Inventories

1,587

-

1,587

-

1,587

Cash and bank

Assets not measured at fair value
Loans and receivables net of advances and prepayments
Due from related parties
Government compensation receivable
Cash and bank balances

305,913

-

-

-

-

380

-

-

-

-

95,357

-

-

-

552,455

-

-

-

-

954,105
Liabilities measured at fair value
Other financial liabilities

7,289

-

7,289

-

7,289

Other current assets
Other current liabilites

61,886
4,311
1,012
15,985
(17,162)

Provision for end of service benefit

(8,977)

Net identifiable assets acquired

57,055

Share of net identifiable assets acquired (100%)

57,055

Intangible

34,382

Goodwill

87,597

Total consideration (satisfied by cash)

179,034

Liabilities not measured at fair value
Trade and other payables

286,875

-

-

-

-
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Bank borrowings

470,262

-

-

-

-

1,805

-

-

-

-

During 2017, the Group entered into an agreement with Anderson UAE Inc. to establish a company (Gulf National Forage Company LLC) for import,
wholesale and distribution of forage products in the UAE and the GCC. The entity is expected to commence its operations by Quarter 1, 2018.

758,942

-

-

-

-
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Due to related parties
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Contingent liabilities and capital commitments
31 December 2017
AED’000

31 December 2016
AED’000

Bank guarantees and letters of credit

70,222

70,327

Capital commitments

41,317

60,714

Investment

Non-controlling interest

During 2016, the Group entered into an agreement with Al Wafir Marketing Services Company K.S.C.C., to establish a joint water bottling plant in Kuwait
namely Al Rammah National For General Trading and Contracting Company WLL. The 50% shareholding in Al Rammah National For General Trading
and Contracting Company WLL is treated as a subsidiary, rather than as a joint venture, since the contractual shareholders’ agreement provide for the
management control of the entity by the Group.
The following table summarises the information relating to the Group’s subsidiary that have a material NCI:
31 December 2017
AED’000

At 31 December 2017 guarantees of AED 59,728 thousand were outstanding (2016: AED 54,347 thousand) and is included in bank guarantees and
letter of credit above.

NCI percentage

The above bank guarantees and letters of credits were issued in the normal course of business. These include deferred payment credit, performance
bonds, tender bonds, deferred payment bills, inward bill and margin deposit guarantees.

Current assets

Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows:

Non-current assets

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

31 December 2017
AED’000

31 December 2016
AED’000

Less than one year

16,231

20,007

Between one and five years

30,024

30,112

More than five years

31,621

35,439

77,876

85,558

Net assets

50%
85,994
5,122
(23,759)
(75)
67,283

Net assets attributable to NCI

33,641

Loss allocated to NCI

(1,752)

The Group has leasehold land, building and vehicles under operating leases. The lease terms are with option to renew the lease at the time of expiry.
Lease expense charged for the year is AED 24,549 thousand (2016: AED 25,559 thousand).
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Dividend

During 2017, the Group paid AED 90,000 thousand cash dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2016: AED 75,000 thousand for the year
ended 31 Dec 2015) which represents 15% (2016: 12.5%) of the issued and paid up capital of the Group.
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Acquisition of a subsidiary

During 2017, the Group acquired 100% shares of Delta Bottled Water Factory Company Limited (“Delta Water”) based in Jeddah, Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia (KSA) producing “Al Ain” brand water. The acquisitions enable Agthia to enter KSA market for the first time with its “Al Ain” water brand, the
leading bottled water brand in UAE. Delta’s water business has been present in Saudi Arabia for three decades and is a growing and cash generating
operation.
The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the acquisition in the consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2017 are as follows:
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Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities
Liabilities
Bank
Borrowings
AED’000

Equity

Other
financial
liabilities
AED’000

Share
capital
AED’000

Legal
reserves
AED’000

Translation
reserve
AED’000

Other
reserve
AED’000

Retained
earnings
AED’000

NCI
AED’000

Total
AED’000

Changes from financing cash flow
Balance as at 1 January 2017

470,262

7,289

600,000

146,850

(40,303)

(19,260)

998,399

-

1,685,686

Proceeds from term loan

113,625

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

113,625

Proceeds from bank borrowings

23,356

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

23,356

Settlement of derivative

-

(6,285)

-

-

-

-

-

-

(6,285)

Dividend paid

-

-

-

-

-

-

(90,000)

-

(90,000)

Interest paid

(17,753)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(17,753)

Total changes from
financing cash flow

119,228

(6,285)

-

-

-

-

(90,000)

-

22,943

-

-

-

-

(1,733)

-

-

-

(1,733)

18,869

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

18,869

(15,408)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(15,408)

3,461

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,461

-

(1,004)

-

20,609

-

12,815

185,481

33,641

251,542

592,951

-

600,000

167,459

(42,036)

(6,445)

1,093,880

33,641

2,439,450

Effect of changes in foreign
exchange rates

Other changes
Liability-related
Interest expense
Changes in overdraft and accruals
Total liability-related other
changes
Total equity-related other
changes
Balance at
31 December 2017
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